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2019 Highlights

We put members at the heart of what we do
Welcome to the 2019 Annual Report and Accounts for the British Friendly Society, which includes our Strategic Report 

and Financial Statements.  

We start with a personal welcome from our Chairman, Stuart Purdy. Stuart describes our results and achievements 

against an external context.

Next, you’ll be introduced to the members of our Board and Senior Management Team, before our newly appointed 

CEO, Gordon Hull, presents the ‘Strategic Report’. Gordon’s Overview and Business Review describe our business 

model and how we performed against our objectives in 2019.

The ‘Board of Directors’ Report’ describes how the Board has carried out its duties and responsibilities, and the activities 

of the Board and its Committees.  This is followed by the ‘Directors’ Remuneration Report’. 

The ‘Independent Auditor’s Report’ summarises our independent external auditor’s opinion of the Financial Statement 

and other matters that they are required to review.

The ‘Financial Statements’ and accompanying notes provide detailed reporting on the financial performance of the 

Society. 

Finally, ‘General Information’ includes the contact details for the Society and key external advisers. 

We would like to thank you for your support throughout 2019, which has most importantly helped us to pay claims to 

the 1,295 members who unfortunately suffered illnesses or injuries last year. We’re very proud to be making a positive 

difference to our members’ lives. 

This report gives us the opportunity to reassure you of your Society’s strength and our ability to support you should 

you need us. We very much hope you find it helpful. 

Warm regards,

The British Friendly Team
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Final Bonus

20%

Interest Rate

1.75%

Apportionment 
Rate

£1.20
(non-commuted)

17.5% 
increase
in membership 32,310

members
94%

of claims paid

Regulation
The Society focused on several key themes in 2019 including the 

ongoing embedding of the Senior Managers and Certification 

Regime (SMCR) which was successfully implemented in 2018, and 

operational resilience, outsourcing and third-party management 

consultation papers produced jointly by the FCA, Prudential 

Regulation Authority (PRA) and the Bank of England.  The Bank of 

England released its supervisory statement for banks and insurers 

outlining the management of financial risks of climate change.  The 

Society has allocated responsibility for the specific management 

of financial risks related to climate change to the Interim Finance 

Director and an initial plan is in place. 

Corporate Governance
We welcomed Samantha Blackie and Ian Bullock as new Non-

Executive Directors to the Board in 2019. Ian, a qualified Actuary, 

was also appointed as Chair of the Audit and Compliance 

Committee and we look forward to benefiting from Sam’s 

human resources knowledge, skills and advice. Both bring 

significant experience gained in member-owned financial services 

organisations.

I am also pleased to welcome Nicole Coll to the Board as a Non-

Executive Director effective from January 2020.  Nicole is a 

Chartered Accountant with significant experience as a Finance 

Director in financial services. 

All three Directors were appointed following a Board skills review 

and search and selection processes using external search partners.  

I would like to thank all of my Board colleagues for the time, effort 

and expertise they bring to the Society.

Stuart Purdy
Chairman of the Society

2019: New Board Members

Samantha Blackie
Non-Executive Director

Ian Bullock
Non-Executive Director

2020: New Board Member

Nicole Coll
Non-Executive Director

Chairman’s 
Welcome
Stuart Purdy
Chairman of the Society

Looking ahead

Sadly, having hoped for greater political stability following the UK General Election and the withdrawal of the UK from the European 

Union at the end of January 2020, we are faced with the uncertain impact on all our lives of the Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic.  

This event has been described by authorities as the greatest public health threat since the end of the Second World War.  At the 

time of writing, we do not know the full impact of the virus on our members, intermediaries or colleagues.  However, we do expect an 

increase in claims and investment markets have been significantly affected.  We will do all we can to support and provide service to 

our members, colleagues and financial advisers and to safeguard the Society for the long-term. 

I would like to thank our members and intermediaries for their continued support and thank you for taking the time to read this 

Overview.  I wish you the very best for the coming year as we come through the challenges of the current Coronavirus pandemic. 

One thing that distinguishes British Friendly from others is the commitment and dedication of our staff based in Bedford and across 

the country. I particularly thank each and every one of them for their work during the year under review but especially during the 

current pandemic when they have done so much to maintain our service and support to members in such challenging circumstances.

Introduction

This is my first introduction as Chairman, and it is a privilege to take 

on this role at this exciting time in the development of the Society. I 

would like to thank Chris Radford, my predecessor, for all his work on 

behalf of the Society and for ensuring such a smooth transition for 

me.  I am very pleased that Chris has agreed to continue serve on the 

Board for a further period.

2019 was a very good year for the Society. Despite political and 

economic uncertainty, combined with sluggish growth in the UK 

economy, I am delighted to report that the Society has achieved a 

trading surplus of over £9.3 million and, after taking into account 

member withdrawals of £5.0 million, has made a significant 

contribution to member funds through the Fund for Future 

Appropriations of over £4.3 million.  The increase in members funds 

highlights the long-term value added to the Society through the 

strategic decision taken three years ago to develop the Protect book 

of business. 

Over the year, we increased our membership by 17.5% to 32,310 and, 

as we move into a new decade, we are helping more members than 

ever protect their income and secure support in times of need.  At 

the time of writing, the UK is starting our lockdown and 2020 will 

be challenging but we are particularly proud to have maintained our 

service to members, a key factor that differentiates British Friendly.

The past year has also been a period of significant change for the 

Society.  I am delighted to welcome Gordon Hull as our new Chief 

Executive Officer following a rigorous external search.  Gordon 

brings extensive experience of successfully transforming financial 

services businesses and bringing greater value to customers.  

I am also very pleased by the progress we have made in delivering 

against our long-term strategic plan, including the development of 

a new administration platform that will lay the foundation for the 

Society’s growth in the years ahead.  

The Board said farewell to Lee Schöpp and Michael Bartholomeuz in 

2019. Lee joined the Society as Finance Director in 2010 and I would 

particularly like to thank Lee for serving as interim Chief Executive 

until the appointment of our new CEO. Michael served as Chair of the 

Society’s Audit & Compliance Committee and I would like to thank 

him for his contribution.  We wish Lee and Michael all the best for 

the future.

Membership
Our membership grew significantly in 2019 and we were proud to 

protect the incomes of over 32,000 members against sickness or 

disability.  It is a privilege to have been chosen by members and 

Financial Advisers who have recommended us.

In 2019, we again paid 94% of claims received, and we continue to do 

all that we can to ensure that we are able to help as many members 

as possible.  We also sought to help our members in new ways 

and built upon the strength of our award-winning Mutual Benefits 

programme with new benefits helping our members to save money, 

take advantage of exclusive offers and access advice on wellbeing 

and lifestyle guidance. In 2019 we also introduced BF Care, a new 

discretionary programme including benefits such as Death and 

Bereavement benefit, Care Assistance and Recovery Support benefit.  

Bonus
I am pleased to report that, for this year, we were able to maintain 

our interest rate at 1.75% and increased our terminal bonus to 20% 

(17.5% in 2018) for Holloway members. This reflected a very good 

performance in 2019 for our investment portfolio.

Results
New policy sales exceeded our expectations in 2019, reflecting 

strong relationships with our longstanding intermediary partners 

and our success in developing new relationships.  This contributed to 

record premium income of over £10 million.

A contract was signed to develop a new administration platform 

and our investment to date appears in the Statement of Financial 

Position. The new platform will enable efficiencies as well as the 

ability to deliver product enhancements to our members.

The Society ends 2019 with a healthy financial position, with a 

Solvency Capital Ratio of 201%. This provides us with the capacity to 

invest in our Society and deal with challenges and changes in market 

and investment conditions. 
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Our Current Board of Directors
Stuart became Chairman of British Friendly in 2019 and is very committed to the UK’s 

mutual sector. He also Chairs the Beverley Building Society and is a member of the Scottish 

Life Supervisory Committee, part of the largest mutual life, pensions and investment 

company in the UK. He sits on the European Board of Assurant and Chairs its Audit and 

Risk Committee. In his Executive career, Stuart was Product and Investment Director of 

Aviva Europe, was CEO of Ireland’s largest insurance group and he led the launch of 

Aviva’s business in India. His last Executive role was as CEO of RSA’s Asia and Middle East 

Region.

While in India, he established a partnership with Arpana Trust to set up the Aviva Balvatika 

School in the slum resettlement area of Delhi that has now educated more than 6,000 

children. He has a strong belief in Corporate Social Responsibility.

Stuart is also a Trustee and Audit Committee Chair of one of the country’s largest charities, 

Age UK, which is dedicated to helping everyone make the most of later years through 

care, support, advice and effective campaigns such as ‘No-One should have No-One’, 

addressing loneliness for over 2.5m older people in the UK.  

Stuart lives in Edinburgh with his wife and two teenage children.

Sam is a corporate Human Resources Director with over 29 years’ experience. Starting her 

career in retail although more recently she has held a number of senior positions across 

the Financial Services Sector including Group People and Corporate Affairs Director at 

Royal London, the UK’s largest mutual life insurance and pensions company. 

In addition, Sam has been a trustee of UK and Irish pension schemes, is currently a 

Trustee of the charity Meningitis Now and Council member of Aberystwyth University. 

Through both her executive and non-executive career, Sam has extensive experience 

of the operation of governance committees such as the Remuneration and Nominations 

Committee. Having completed her Master’s in Business Psychology she has a particular 

interest in leadership development, culture and organisational change. 

Outside of work Sam enjoys watching her teenage daughter play sport or walking their 

dog in the Forest of Dean.

Robin has worked for nearly 40 years in financial services including a series of senior 

leadership positions in Lloyds Bank and LV=. He has sat on a number of industry committees 

and as a Director of LINK Interchange. In recent years he has worked as an independent 

consultant across the financial mutual sector and a coach to senior executives, leaders 

and their teams. 

Robin is an active member of his local community and at various times has been a youth 

club leader, school governor and a trustee of a number of charities. 

He has been married to Anna for 37 years and has 4 grown up children, with his time 

increasingly being taken up by supporting 9 grandchildren at various activities and events.

Gordon joined the Board in July 2019 with over 25 years’ experience of developing 

businesses in the financial services sector.  He has held leadership positions in insurance, 

consumer investment and financial advice businesses including Wesleyan, Virgin Money, 

AXA and Bestinvest.  Gordon is a Cambridge economics graduate and INSEAD MBA 

and brings particular expertise in strategy and commercial development, marketing and 

digital innovation.   

In addition, Gordon is a Trustee and member of the Income & Investment Committee 

of the RCN Foundation, a leading charity championing nursing, and a member of the 

Remuneration Committee of the Royal College of Nursing Group.

Gordon lives in east London with his wife and three teenage children and enjoys spending 

time travelling, learning about history, listening to music and occasionally bingeing on 

box-sets.

Chris joined the Board in June 2010, previously holding the role of Chairman and 

since then Chair of Nomination Committee and has over 35 years of experience in the 

Financial Services sector as CEO of Lambeth Building Society, Legal & General’s unit trust 

business and specialist investment firm TIS Group. The skills and experience Chris brings 

to the Board include strategy development and implementation, change management, 

business planning and organisation, executive development, operational efficiency and 

understanding the responsibilities to members of a mutual organisation.

He’s also the Non-Executive Chairman of Age UK Enterprises, the trading company of the 

UK’s largest later life charity, and a Non-Executive Director at the Richmond Fellowship 

Scotland, the largest social care provider in Scotland. 

Chris is married, has twin boys aged 29, and is an experienced alpine skier, a keen sailor, 

enjoys golf and plays in a blues band.

Ian joined the Board in June 2019 as a Non-Executive Director and Chair of the Audit & 

Compliance Committee. For 35 years, he held roles at Senior Management and Board 

level across a range of Financial Services sectors: Insurance, Building Societies, Broking, 

Pensions and Life Assurance. He’s chaired two Boards, held a Managing Director position 

and several Non-Executive Director positions. He is a qualified actuary and mathematics 

graduate with expertise in business, finance and risk management, as well as marketing, 

distribution and product management. 

Throughout his whole career, Ian’s real passion has been all about people, customers and 

colleagues. His most enjoyable role being; Chief Customer Officer, at Yorkshire Building 

Society, where he was responsible for driving and upholding the customer experience, 

value and benefits for the Society at sector leading standards. 

Ian is a dedicated family man who spends much of his spare time following his beloved 

team Manchester United, or travelling the world pursuing a range of bucket list experiences.

Nicole trained as a chartered accountant and has worked for over twenty years in executive 

and non-executive board level positions. She is currently; Chief of Finance & Operations, 

for a privately owned Bank, having joined them from the Bank of England where she was 

Chief Financial Accountant. Prior to this, Nicole held senior positions at broker-dealers in 

New York and London. 

Nicole is married and has a son and daughter who keep her busy outside of work. In her 

spare time Nicole supports several local charities. She’s an enthusiastic cook, avid rugby 

supporter and keen traveller.

Audrey joined the Board in April 2016 as a Non-Executive Director and Chair of the Risk 

and Investment Committee.  In her executive career Audrey worked for a number of banks 

and latterly was Global Head of Risk for Aberdeen Asset Management. In her role she was 

responsible for the implementation of the Group’s Risk Management Framework globally. 

Audrey has 2 other board positions with Investment trusts and, for 4 years, she was a Non-

Executive Director in a regional building society.

In her spare time Audrey enjoys the arts, travelling and trying to beat her personal best 

at her local Parkrun.

Stuart Purdy
Chairman

Samantha Blackie
Non-Executive Director

Robin Willison
Senior Independent Director

Gordon Hull
Chief Executive Officer

Chris Radford
Non-Executive Director

Ian Bullock
Non-Executive Director

Nicole Coll
Non-Executive Director

Audrey McNair
Non-Executive Director
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Our Current Management Team

Georgina joined the Society in 2017, having previously worked in a number of 

regulatory & compliance roles within financial services, including the Lloyd’s 

market and the Society of Lloyd’s. As Risk and Compliance Director, she’s 

responsible for ensuring the Society operates within the confines of law and 

regulation. She’s also responsible for advising our Board on risk, governance 

and legal & regulatory matters. 

Georgina is also a Trustee for the Nene Education Trust, helping to deliver 

high quality educational and personal support for young people in East 

Northamptonshire.  

Georgina enjoys holidays abroad with her husband and three children. When 

she can she enjoys time in the garden where she can spend time with her family 

and two tortoises. 

Georgina Rose
Company Secretary and Risk & Compliance Director

Lorraine joined British Friendly in June 1983. Since this time, she’s held a 

number of roles that have added to her extensive knowledge of the Society. 

Lorraine’s wealth of expertise in customer care and the needs of our members 

is invaluable. She became Head of Operations in 2011.

Lorraine was most recently a finalist in both the ‘Unsung Hero’ and ‘Women 

of the Year – Customer Support’ categories for the 2019 Women in Protection 

Awards. This is testament to her hard work and dedication.

Lorraine is married with three grown up children and enjoys playing netball, 

running, travelling abroad and spending time with her family.

Lorraine Donald
Head of Operations

Julie joined British Friendly as Distribution Director in 2017, to extend the 

distribution footprint of the Society through stronger partnerships with 

intermediaries. Her career spans key distribution roles within protection and 

wealth management. She has worked in major insurers, including Vitality, Legal 

& General, Aegon and Standard Life.

Julie also sits on the Board of the Women In Finance Charter, an initiative 

established by HM Treasury to improve gender diversity and secure equal 

opportunities within the financial services sector.

In her spare time, Julie volunteers for Rochdale Dog Rescue. She enjoys long 

walks in the country and seeing family and friends. She lives in Lancashire with 

her partner, son and their four dogs.

Julie Greenwood
Distribution Director

Nick joined British Friendly in 2016 as Product and Marketing Director. He’s an 

advocate of mutuality, with over 37 years of expertise in the Financial Services 

industry with organisations such as Zurich and Vitality.

His experience of working in a number of roles across sales, marketing, research 

and product development has given him a broad knowledge of the protection 

market and it’s driven his passion for protecting people with Income Protection. 

When Nick isn’t working, he enjoys playing golf and watching sport, particularly 

cricket. He is married and loves spending time with his grandchildren.

Nick Telfer
Product & Marketing Director

Paul joined the Society in 2019 with 37 years’ experience in the life and disability 

industry. Paul brings to the Society a wealth of expertise in underwriting and 

claims, as well as experience in senior management. 

Prior to joining us, Paul was Global Head of Claims at Chubb for seven years, 

with responsibility for Europe, Asia and Latin America. 

Paul is married with two adult children who also work in the insurance sector. 

He enjoys family life and driving his classic MG on the weekends.

Paul Andrews
Claims and Underwriting Director

Trevor was contracted by the Society in January 2019 and served as Interim 

Finance Director throughout the year.  He is continuing in this capacity in 2020. 

Trevor has over 35 years’ experience in the insurance industry both in the 

UK and overseas.  He has held senior finance roles with brokers, insurers and 

reinsurers covering diverse risks from UK domestic policies through to energy 

and catastrophe business.

In an addition to the role Trevor has also assumed responsibility for the Society’s 

management of risks associated with Climate Change. 

Trevor is married and has four children. Together with the family dog they 

keep him busy outside work when he also likes to cook, watch sport, read and 

complete crossword puzzles.

Trevor Parker-Bundy
Interim Finance Director



Strategic Report Corporate Governance Accounts & Financial 
Statements

Other information

British Friendly Society Annual Report and Accounts 2019

10

British Friendly Society Annual Report and Accounts 2019

11

Strategic Report Corporate Governance Accounts & Financial 
Statements

Other information

We were delighted to record another fantastic year in terms of 

membership growth. We helped improve our distribution coverage 

by linking with a number of large mortgage networks, which has 

allowed us to forge new connections with advisers and attract new 

members.

Business Environment
2019 was a strong year for the Society in terms of trading 

performance, continuing the momentum of previous years. Key 

performance indicators and how we measure them are as follows:

Capital Position

We wrote a significant volume of profitable new business in 2019 

which increased our capital requirements and maintained a strong 

Solvency Capital Ratio.  Our Solvency position allows us to invest in 

our Society while protecting the interests of our members.

Claims

Paying claims is at the core of our business and so we were delighted 

to be able to exceed our target for claims acceptance by 4%.  We aim 

not only to help members when they are unable to work and earn an 

income, but we also are committed to helping members return to 

work as quickly as possible. 

Service Levels

The Society sets targets for service based on time taken to deal 

with member queries and claims and efficiency in answering calls 

and monitors actual performance against those targets. We received 

unexpectedly high levels of new business in the first half of 2019 and 

a significantly higher level of claims than in previous years.  Despite 

staff recruitment in key areas, we ultimately fell short of our ambitious 

targets in this area. Improving our turn-around times in key areas 

such as underwriting and claims is an important focus for 2020. 

Other Performance Indicators

As shown above, the majority of our business targets have been met 

and, in some cases, significantly exceeded.  Work continues on the 

development of a new administration system which we expect to be 

operational in early 2021.

Trends and Factors likely to impact the future development, 

performance or position of the business

The Society plans to continue to grow in a sustainable way in the 

years ahead by offering protection products to a wider audience 

of customers through existing and new intermediaries. The income 

protection market has grown strongly in recent years and we expect 

this to continue in the longer term.  

The Society’s growth in membership in the past three years means 

that we expect claims from members for sickness and injury to 

continue to increase.  We need to ensure that there are suitable 

processes and staff in place to ensure that we can provide high levels 

of service.

A new administration system will enable us to improve service and 

products for our members and intermediaries in a cost-effective way.  

The implementation of this system will take a significant amount of 

management time in 2020.    

Sadly, at the time of writing, we are faced with the uncertain impact 

of the Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic and significant economic 

disruption.  We do not know the full impact of this on members, 

intermediaries or colleagues.  However, we have seen an increase 

in claims and investment markets have been significantly affected.  

We have maintained services for our members and intermediaries.  

We are monitoring all relevant risks from the impact of Coronavirus 

(COVID-19) and have modelled possible scenarios to assess the 

impact on the Solvency position. Management and Board consider 

that the Society is able to maintain its Solvency, now and in future 

years, and will take any mitigating actions required to safeguard 

the position of the Society. An internal audit will be undertaken to 

provide assurance of the systems and controls in place now that staff 

are working from home.

People & Culture
At British Friendly, our aim is always to put our members at the 

heart of everything we do. And the best way we communicate this 

message directly is through our people, by fostering an ethos in 

which we celebrate our values and encourage all of our colleagues to 

embody these values in their daily work.

We consider our colleagues our most valuable asset, which is why we 

offer a comprehensive set of benefits and reward our staff through 

a bonus scheme closely linked to the Society’s strategic targets and 

their personal performance.

The Society also actively supports local charities each year. For 2019 

staff voted from a shortlist of worthy local charities and chose Road 

Victims Trust (RVT). RVT supports the families of those affected by 

serious road traffic incidents, providing counselling and bereavement 

support.

To help raise money for this very worthy cause our colleagues took 

part in a number of fundraising activities including bake sales, dress 

down Fridays and even taking to the skies in a sponsored skydive.

As a result of these efforts the Society was able to raise a grand 

total of £7,353.35, which is a testament to the tireless fundraising 

activities of our colleagues.

For 2020 our colleagues have chosen FACES, a Bedford based 

domestic abuse charity, as our charity of the year.

Conclusion
I am delighted to join the Society at this exciting period in its 

development, despite the uncertain challenges that COVID-19 

may present in the future.  I look forward to building on the solid 

foundations we already have in place to deliver the very best results 

for our members over the years ahead.

Introduction
I am delighted to join the Society in the year in which we 

welcomed our 30,000th member and helped a record 1,295 

members through their time of need, helping many to return to 

work.  This reflects the successful delivery of the ambitious long-

term strategic plan on which the Society embarked three years 

ago.  During this period, the Society has grown substantially – 

and 2019 was another year of substantial growth in the number of 

members and premiums earned - but we have sought to remain 

true to the purpose and values that lay behind our founding in 

1902.  Our members are the reason that we exist as a Society, 

and why we aim to put our members at the heart of everything 

we do.

The successful delivery of the long-term strategy is the 

culmination of a great deal of hard work by our team.  We may 

be small in number compared to some much larger insurance 

firms, but we have continued to show that we can deliver 

award-winning levels of personal service, top-rated products 

that intermediaries are happy to recommend to their clients 

and innovative benefits for our members, as well as consistently 

paying a high proportion of claims.  I am grateful to all of my 

colleagues for the energy and commitment that they bring to 

their work every day and their contribution to the success of the 

Society.

2019 was also a year of transition for the Society, as we look 

forward to the next phase in the development of the Society.  

We are well-progressed in the delivery of a new administration 

system which will enable us to improve service and products for 

our members and intermediaries in a cost-effective way.  We 

are also delighted that more intermediaries, from a wider range 

of channels, have chosen to recommend our products to their 

clients.  Finally, I’ve been pleased to welcome a number of new 

colleagues to our team to support the growth of the Society.

Business Review
Principal Objective
The Society was founded in 1902 to provide sickness benefits for 

commercial travellers (travelling sales people) and their families. 

Many things have changed since then but our principal objective 

remains the same, to support our members financially as they 

recover from sickness or an injury.  We do this through the 

provision of Income Protection products, which are sold through 

intermediaries to people who need them. 

Strategy
Our strategy is driven by our purpose which is to be a trusted 

and relevant provider of financial support for our members in 

times of need.  We aim to offer attractive protection products 

that meet the needs of people and which intermediaries will 

want to recommend to their clients.  We aim to be easy to do 

business with for intermediaries, so they will consider us for their 

clients and help us grow.  We aim to be easy for our members by 

providing a personalised service which they will value.  We are 

guided by our promise to do the right thing for our members, 

rather than pursuing shareholder profit, which allows us to 

consider the situation of each member, pay out claims whenever 

possible, and offer additional benefits such as physiotherapy and 

counselling.  By putting our members at the heart of everything 

we do, more intermediaries will recommend us and we will grow, 

ensuring we have a strong solvency position and are able to 

deliver even more benefits for our members.

Business Model
Our business model is to sell protection products to a wide 

range of customers who are recommended to choose us by 

intermediaries.  We design, build and administer our products 

ourselves, which means that we are able to meet the specific needs 

of customers and provide excellent service to our members and 

intermediaries.  Operations, Claims and Underwriting, as well as 

most of our key functions, are managed in-house.  We outsource 

a small number of specialist functions, including Actuarial, Audit 

and Investment Management. We partner with specialist third-

parties for systems development and the provision of services.

Business Performance
Targets are in accordance with our business plan. 

Membership

Strategic Report
Gordon Hull
Chief Executive Officer

Founded in:

1902

Owned by 

members:

100%

Claims paid 

(2019):

94%

Purpose Aim Promise Commitment

Criteria Target Achieved

Solvency Capital Ratio 195% 201%

Criteria Target Achieved

Service Levels 93% 86%

A warm welcome to everyone reading this report.  

It’s a pleasure to write my first Strategic Report as 

Chief Executive Officer. 
“ “

30,000 32,310

Target Achieved

Criteria Target Achieved

Ratio of Accepted Claims to 
Claims Received

90% 94%

Gordon Hull
Chief Executive Officer
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Risk Management
Georgina Rose
Risk & Compliance Director

Implementation of Risk Framework
The Society has been enhancing the three lines of defence model used within its business, which provides a clear set of principles and a 

framework for managing risk across the organisation. 

It is the responsibility of the first line of 
defence to own, manage and supervise 

risks with an agreed defined risk tolerance.

The second line provides oversight and 
control, including leading risk culture and 
analysing the overall risk profile, reporting 

to both the Risk and Investment Committee 
and Board.

This includes the responsibility of the 
Society’s internal audit function to review 
the overall performance of assessing key 

risks and their management and reporting 
on them to Committees and, through them, 

to the Board.

Risk Management Process
The risk management process includes:

 � Identification of significant risks by function, with a minimum 

quarterly review by the Chief Risk Officer and the Risk owner

 � Assessing risk by potential impact and likelihood and key 

mitigation measures identified.  The current level of risk is 

compared to the risk appetite to determine whether further 

mitigation is required

 � Regular reviewing, challenging, prioritising and monitoring by 

the senior management, Risk and Investment Committee and 

ultimately the Board whose members determine the overall risk 

profile both qualitatively and quantitatively

The Society, through its Own Risk and Solvency Assessment (ORSA), 

carries out an assessment of the adequacy of its risk management 

and current and projected solvency positions under normal and 

severe stress scenarios.  This allows the Society to fully understand 

the material risks it faces and consider further mitigating actions. The 

Board has assessed the principal risks facing the Society, including 

those that would threaten its business model, future performance, 

solvency or liquidity, and the management and mitigation of those 

risks through a range of management actions.  The assessment has 

included stress testing financial forecasts for severe but plausible 

scenarios, both individually and in the aggregate.  It is impossible to 

foresee all risks, and the combinations in which they could happen and 

there may be risks that currently do not appear material.  However, 

the Society expects that it will be able to continue to operate and 

meet its liabilities as they fall, whilst being here for its members. 

First Line of Defence Second Line of Defence Third Line of Defence

Individual 
departmental 

managers

Risk and 
Compliance Team

Internal Audit and other 
sources of independent 
assurance that interact 

directly with the 
Society’s key oversight 

committees. 

Assess ReviewIdentify

Risk and Description Mitigating Actions

Financial Risk: This risk relates to movements 

in the financial markets and the result on 

investment portfolios and property.  It also 

considers third party risk and the ability to 

monitor third parties who may default and in 

turn cause a loss to financial assets.

The Society continuously monitors its investment portfolio with its investment 

managers who have set parameters and trigger points in place established through 

an investment mandate. 

The Society also monitors its cash flow against budget and requires the distribution 

plan to be reviewed against budget at least quarterly.

The Society has a formal and robust due diligence process which is risk based 

against any third-party relationship. The Board review the performance of the 

Business through a formal Quarterly Business Review.

Insurance Risk: This risk considers the business 

we receive against the tolerances and forecast 

set to determine areas outside of appetite and 

which in turn may affect our solvency. 

The Society monitors both new and existing business against various metrics that 

include product type, claims, lapses and retention.  We also monitor by distribution 

channel and any changes or movements in the intermediary market. 

Legal Risk: This risk considers the areas of 

risk relating to regulation and our abilities 

to adhere to regulatory requirements and 

reporting.

In 2019, the Society introduced an enhanced level of sanction screening checks and 

anti-money laundering checks.  Regulatory reporting is completed throughout the 

year in coordination with our actuaries.

Operational Risk: Included in this risk is 

business service, conduct risk, data security, 

succession planning including key person 

dependency risk, along with business 

continuity planning and disaster recovery.

The Society has process maps in place to provide procedures for all operational 

activities and to ensure consistency throughout the business. This supports our 

people to provide good customer outcomes.

Reputational Risk: This risk considers the 

failure of any other risk which could damage 

opinions resulting in either loss of members 

and/or financial loss, including regulatory 

fines.

The Society reports regularly on any member dissatisfaction to the Audit and 

Compliance Committee and the Board.  This includes regular reporting of complaints 

and trends to understand any changes in process and reviewing social media to 

understand any other issues.

Strategic Risk: This risk considers the Society’s 

solvency ratio and capital requirements and 

being able to ensure member’s money is 

protected.

Various assessments and regulatory reports are produced to assess the predicted 

solvency and financial position on a range of different stress scenarios.  The Society 

also reviews the business model and the ability to change and adapt where required

The following provides a summary of our as principal risks and uncertainties together with mitigating 
actions:

Brexit
Due to the Society’s business and operations being within the UK, 

Brexit is not expected to have an adverse effect on the Society. The 

Society’s Investment Managers are continuously monitoring the 

Society’s investment book and will react accordingly.

Climate Change
Climate change, and the Society’s response to it, presents a number 

of financial risks to the Society. Whilst many risks are likely to fully 

crystallise over a period of years, a number of them are starting to 

become apparent and have effect now. Financial risks from climate 

change arise as two separate risk factors – physical risk and transition 

risk.

Potential physical risks to the Society, as an Income Protection 

insurer, come from changes to morbidity and mortality arising from, 

amongst other factors, changes in air quality, temperature change 

and stresses on infrastructure.  The Society monitors claims and 

lapse trends on an ongoing basis and takes mitigating action where 

necessary.

Potential transition risks arise from the valuation of assets invested 

in sectors sensitive to moves towards a low carbon economy and the 

effects of changes in priority for government funding in response 

to a need for climate change mitigation. The Risk and Investment 

Committee has engaged with its Investment Manager to understand 

these risks and how they may impact the investment portfolio.

The Interim Finance Director has been allocated the responsibility of 

managing the financial risks from climate change and this is included 

in his statement of responsibilities.  

Introduction
The Society’s Risk Management Framework is documented in a set 

of risk management policies each of which has been approved by the 

Society’s Board.  Each identified risk appetite has a set of potential 

outcomes which are then linked to the risk register, which records all 

the individual risks that have been identified as posing a threat to the 

achievement of the Society’s planned strategic objectives. Mitigation 

plans are then established against key risks in order to manage them 

appropriately.

Risk Appetite Statements

Risk Appetite Statements define the level of risk the Society is willing 

to take in order to achieve its strategic objectives.  

The Board reviewed its Risk Appetite Statements in 2019, in order 

to establish the level of risk that the Society is willing to take, 

whilst maintaining a sound risk management and internal controls 

framework.  These statements then define the risk tolerance levels 

throughout the business, and along with our values, provide clarity 

on the risk culture.
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Board Governance

The Society complies with the requirements of the Senior Managers 

and Certification Regime (SM & CR) and maintains a Responsibilities 

Map which sets out the governance structure of the Society 

and identifies Senior Management Functions, the Notified Non-

Executive Directors and other significant roles that carry additional 

responsibility called Certified Functions.  It also provides a high-

level summary of the Board and Committees responsibilities and 

authority.

In line with the approved schedule, the Board of Directors held 

eight formal meetings in 2019 along with scheduled calls in-

between the meetings. The Board comprises the Chair of the 

Board, who is an Independent Non-Executive Director, six other 

non-executive directors and up to two Executive members. One 

Non-Executive Director, Chris Radford, has served for longer than 

nine years. The Board, taking account of his knowledge, expertise 

and approach, has assessed his independence and concluded that 

he is independent. The Board remains satisfied with the overall 

independence of its members.

The attendance record at meetings during 2019 was as follows:

The Board has four main committees being:

 � Audit and Compliance

 � Risk and Investment

 � Remuneration

 � Nomination

Board And Board Committees

Name Board Risk and 
Investment 
Committee

Nomination 
Committee

Remuneration 
Committee

Audit and 
Compliance 
Committee

Stuart Purdy* 8/8 C - 2/2 2/2 2/2

Audrey McNair 8/8 3/3 C 1/1 - 3/3

Chris Radford 8/8 - 2/2 C 2/2 -

Robin Willison**
8/8 3/3 1/1

3/3 C
-

Ian Bullock*** 3/3 1/1 - - 2/2 C

Samantha Blackie**** 3/3 - 1/1 2/2 -

Gordon Hull+ 3/3 1/1 1/1 1/1 1/1

Lee Schöpp++ 6/6 3/3 1/1 2/2 3/3

Michael Bartholomeusz+++ 3/3 1/1 - - 1/1

C – denotes chair of the board or the committee

*Stuart Purdy appointed Chairman of the Board in October 2019

** Robin Willison appointed Senior Independent Director in October 2019

***Ian Bullock joined the Board in June 2019 

**** Samantha Blackie joined the Board in June 2019

+ Gordon Hull joined the Board as Chief Executive Officer in October 2019

++ Lee Schöpp resigned from the Board in November 2019

++Michael Bartholomeusz resigned from the Board in April 2019

The Board
Overall responsibility for the management of the Society rests with 

the Board.  The Board is responsible for all strategic aspects of the 

business and reviews its operating and financial position.  The Chief 

Executive is responsible for carrying out the agreed strategy and 

the day-to-day running of the Society and there is a clear division 

of responsibilities between the roles of the Chief Executive and 

Chairman. 

There are certain decisions that are reserved for the Board. 

These include: 

 � Setting the strategic direction of the Society including the  

 investment strategy

 � Approval of changes to the Society’s corporate and   

 capital structure

 � Monitoring performance of the business and the Executives

 � Establishing a framework of systems and controls

 � Agreeing the appointment of members to the Board of  

 Directors

Committees of the Board

Risk and Investment Committee
The Risk and Investment Committee comprises three Non-Executive Directors and attended by the Society’s Chief Executive Officer, 

Interim Finance Director, Chief Risk Officer, and the Society’s actuary.

The role of the committee is to ensure that the Society’s risk management framework is robust, fit for purpose and embedded within 

the Society. The committee also ensures that the Society’s investments are managed according to an established mandate and meet the 

requirements of members and own funds.

The Board has the power to appoint committees, and to delegate to the committee any authority of the Board. The role of the 

committees is to analyse issues and provide support for the decision-making process.  Each committee has written Terms of 

Reference which are reviewed regularly and the effectiveness of each committee is considered on an annual basis as part of the overall 

performance review of the Board.  The responsibilities of the director’s is outlined later in the Corporate Governance section of the 

report. The Board has established four committees to support the Society’s corporate governance structure: 

The Non-Executive Directors who 
served on the Committee during 

2019 were:

Audrey McNair
Chair

Robin Willison

Ian Bullock
from June 2019

Michael Bartholomeusz
until April 2019

Key responsibilities of the Committee are: 
 � Recommending to the Board the strategy and policy for risk management and 

monitoring its ongoing implementation 

 � Recommending annually that the Board approves the Society’s stated risk appetite 

and risk limits/ budgets/ tolerances across the full range of risks to which the Society 

is exposed

 � Reviewing the processes and procedures for ensuring that all risks are properly 

identified, assessed, mitigated, monitored and reported in a timely, consistent and 

effective manner

 � Identifying all risk incidents and ensuring that these are documented and appropriate 

lessons are learnt

 � Reviewing the investment strategy of the Society, ensuring asset allocation is 

appropriate (under actuarial advice), any deviations are flagged and understood and 

monitoring performance of these investments 

Key documents that are reviewed by this committee are:
A. Own Risk and Solvency Assessment (ORSA) which assess the adequacy of the 

Society’s risk management framework and its current and future solvency position 

under certain stress scenarios

B. Solvency and Financial Condition report (SCFR) is a publicly available report 

on the Society’s website and takes into consideration the Society’s systems of 

governance, risk exposure and information on valuation methods and capital 

management

The committee from 2020 onwards will meet on a quarterly basis but during 2019 they met 

three times. 

Key items considered were:

Standard agenda items for the Risk and Investment committee

 � Risk report including the risk appetite, emerging risks, risk register, IT risks and risk 

incidents

 � Review of the Risk register for the Society’s administration project

 � Review of the Society’s investments

 � Review and recommendation to the Board of the ORSA and the SCFR

 � Delegated policies

Additionally these items were reviewed at specific meetings:

January 2019

 � Review of property portfolio 

 � Review of Asset and Liability Matching of the Society’s investments

May 2019

 � The Investment Manager’s approach to sustainability and ESG 

 � Overview of the Executives bonus scheme

September 2019

 � Brexit implications for the stock market and our portfolio 

 � Regulators requirements for climate change

Risk and Investment 
Committee

Audit and Compliance 
Committee

Nomination
Committee

Renumeration
Committee
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The role of the Audit and Compliance Committee is to assist the 

Board on matters of financial reporting and internal controls including 

regulatory compliance. The Committee members have been selected 

with the aim of providing a wide range of financial and commercial 

expertise necessary to fulfil the Committee’s duties.

Key responsibilities of the Committee are: 
The Committee has a broad sphere of interest on audit and 

compliance matters. Key elements of its terms of reference include 

responsibilities for:

 � Monitoring the performance and effectiveness of the internal 

and external audit functions

 � Reviewing the annual accounts prior to recommending them for 

approval by the Board

 � Ensuring effective governance of the Society’s systems of 

internal controls

 � Providing oversight and guidance to the Society on matters of 

compliance with applicable regulation

Committee Deliberations in 2019
The Committee met on three occasions in 2019. There was full 

attendance from all Committee members. Key items considered in 

2019:

March 2019

 � Reviewed the external audit summary

 � Reviewed and recommended to the Board approval of the 

report and Financial Statements 2018

 � Reviewed the internal audit summary report

 � Reviewed and approved the 2019 internal audit plan

 � Reviewed various compliance monitoring reports and associated 

follow up actions

 � Reviewed and approved relevant internal Society policies

June 2019

 � Reviewed the Society’s Responsibilities Map

 � Reviewed completed internal audit reports and associated 

follow up actions

 � Reviewed the schedule of proposed areas of future internal 

audit focus

 � Reviewed various compliance monitoring reports

October 2019

 � Reviewed the external audit plan

 � Reviewed completed internal audit reports and associated 

follow up actions

 � Reviewed the schedule of proposed areas of future internal 

audit focus

 � Reviewed various compliance monitoring reports and associated 

follow up actions

 � Reviewed and approved a review of financial regulations 

 � Providing oversight and guidance to the Society on matters of 

compliance with applicable regulation

The key areas of internal systems and controls considered during the 

year and how they were addressed were as follows:

Management and Governance of OAC

OAC is an independent consultancy that provides an outsourced 

actuarial function for the Society. An independent internal audit 

review was carried out to provide objective assurance of the 

adequacy of the Society’s governance and management of its 

outsourced actuarial function.

Senior Managers and Certification Regime (SM&CR)

An internal audit was carried out to provide an independent assurance 

of the adequacy of the Society’s plan, control and governance 

framework in relation to the implementation of the SM&CR.

Business Continuity and Disaster Recovery

An audit review was made to give independent and objective 

assurance with regard to the adequacy of the Society’s approach, 

and current arrangements in place over, business continuity and 

disaster recovery.

Risk Management Framework

An independent audit review was carried out to give objective 

assurance with regard to the design and operating effectiveness of 

the Society’s risk management framework.

Audit and Compliance Committee
The Audit and Compliance Committee comprises two Non-Executive Directors and they are attended by the Society’s Chief Executive 

Officer, the Interim Finance Director, Chief Risk Officer and the Society’s Actuary. 

The Non-Executive Directors who served on 
the Committee during 2019 were:

Ian Bullock
Chair from Sept 2019

Audrey McNair

Michael Bartholomeusz
until April 2019

Stuart Purdy
until June 2019

Nomination Committee
The Committee is chaired by a Non-Executive Director and includes two further Non-Executive Directors. The Chief Executive is not a 

member of the Committee but attends to discuss nomination matters where appropriate. 

The Non-Executive Directors who served 
on the Committee during 2019 were:

Key responsibilities of the Committee are:
The Committee has a broad sphere of interest in Board nomination matters. Key 

elements of its terms of reference include responsibilities for: 

 � Identifying the mix of skills and level of overall competence required by the 

Board annually

 � Ensuring the continuing relevant personal development of Board members to 

support the Strategic aims of the Society

 � Appointing Executive and Non -Executive Directors

 � Ensuring the Society has a robust Succession Plan

 � Carrying out Board Effectiveness Reviews as required

Committee Deliberations in 2019
The Committee met on two occasions in 2019. Key items considered in 2019:

Chris Radford
Chair

Audrey McNair
until June 2019

Robin Willison
until June 2019

Samantha Blackie
from June 2019

Stuart Purdy
from June 2019

Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee comprises three independent Non-Executive Directors. The Chief Executive Officer is not a member of the 
Committee but attends to discuss remuneration matters where appropriate.

Robin Willison
Chair

Chris Radford
from June 2019

Samantha Blackie
from June 2019

Michael Bartholomuesz
until June 2019

Stuart Purdy
until June 2019

Key responsibilities of the Committee are:
The Committee takes a broad sphere of interest on remuneration matters including:

 � Reviewing the ongoing appropriateness and relevance of the Society’s 

remuneration policy

 � Reviewing the strategic effectiveness of the remuneration policy so that 

the Society is able to attract and retain the quality of people required to 

administrate and advance its purpose and objectives

 � Setting the ranges of salaries and other benefits for the executives, senior 

leaders and staff with due regard to external benchmarking

 � Approving the design and metrics for any performance related pay schemes 

operated by the Society and approve the total annual payments made under 

such schemes. Ensuring that the personal performance objectives of the 

directors are designed to promote the long-term sustainability of the Society

 � Regular review of the impact of new or proposed regulation and legislation

Committee Deliberations in 2019
The committee met 3 times in 2019. Key items considered during the year included:

 � Review of executive and staff remuneration against external benchmarking 

information

 � Approval of a cost of living rise for executives and staff of 2% effective 

January 2020

 � Approval of 2019 bonus awards and agreement of bonus schemes for 2020

 � A review of the adequacy and performance of the Society staff pension 

scheme

 � Reward strategy review leading to the initiation of a review of the policy in 

2019

March 2019

 � Appointment of new CEO 

and two new Non-Executive 

Directors

 � Board appraisal system

 � Staff appraisal system

 � Skills Matrix

 � Responsibilities Map

November 2019

 � Appointment of our Chief 

Actuary

 � Recruitment plan for new 

Finance Director

 � Future skills and experience 

required on the Board

 � Succession planning

 � New Board appraisal system

The Non-Executive Directors who served 
on the Committee during 2019 were:
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This section of the report sets out details of remuneration paid to executive and non-executive directors during the financial 
year ended 31 December 2019.

Name Fee/Salary 2019
(£000’s)

Bonus 2019
(£000’s)

Benefits 2019
(£000’s)

Total 2019
(£000’s)

Total 2018
(£000’s)

Stuart Purdy
Chairman 30 - - 30 18

Chris Radford
(Chairman January – June 2019) 28 - - 28 32.5

Robin Willison
(Senior Independent Director) 26 - - 26 25

Audrey McNair 25 - - 25 25

Samantha Blackie
(Appointed June 2019) 13.5 - - 13.5 -

Ian Bullock
(Appointed June 2019) 13.5 - - 13.5 -

Michael Bartholomeusz
(Resigned April 2019) 7 - - 7 19

Gordon Hull
(Chief Executive  Officer) (Appointed October 2019) Note 1 and 2 98 30 6 134 -

Lee Schöpp
(interim Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director resigned in 
November 2019) Note 3 and 4

127 - 23 150 172

Iain Clark
(Chief Executive Officer resigned November 2018) - - - - 207

Barbara Merry
(Resigned April 2018) - - - - 6

Nick Bayley
(Resigned in December 2018) - - - - 28

Total 368 30 29 427 532.5

Remuneration for the Year to 31 December 2019
Note 1: Bonus calculated under the Executive Directors bonus scheme.  Includes 50% paid in January 2020 and 50% deferred until 2022.
Note 2: Salary paid to Gordon Hull was £85,000 with additional payments in lieu of pension contributions amounting to £13,000.
Note 3: Lee Schöpp also received remuneration of £24,000 (2018:£21,000) as a Non Executive Director of the Metropolitan Police Friendly Society.
Note 4: Following his resignation as a director further contractual commitments were crystallised and accrued in the accounts in respect of Lee 

Schöpp as detailed in note 9 of the Financial Statements. 

Outline of Remuneration Policy
The aim of the Remuneration Policy is to attract and retain personnel 

of the calibre, skills and values required to deliver the objectives and 

strategy of the Society. It adopts the following key principles:

 � Remuneration is aligned with applicable statutory regulatory   

 requirements

 � Remuneration will promote sound and effective risk management

 � Fixed and variable remuneration will be appropriately balanced  

 so that the Society’s employees do not become overly reliant   

 on the variable component

 � Variable remuneration will be based on a combination of the   

 assessment of the individual and the collective performance   

 and overall results of the Society

 � The Remuneration Policy will be transparent internally and   

 adequately disclosed externally

 � The Society is an equal opportunities employer and is   

 committed to ensuring that all of its employees are    

 remunerated fairly.  Whilst the Society is not currently obliged   

 to publish any gender pay calculations, it intends to take   

 steps to monitor gender equality and reduce or eliminate   

 any gender pay gap where applicable

 � Employees receive more than the minimum remuneration   

 package that they are entitled to in line with statutory legislation

The Society has chosen, where appropriate, to follow best practice in 

Corporate Governance and any other relevant regulations including 

Solvency II and the FCA guidance on remuneration. There is no code 

requirement for members to approve the Society’s Remuneration 

Policy.

Remuneration of Executive and Non-Executive Directors
The remuneration of the Chairman and the Executive directors is 
determined by the Remuneration Committee while that of the Non-
Executive directors is assessed by the Chairman and Executive 
directors. This approach ensures no individual is involved in a decision 
regarding their own reward.

The Chairman and Non-Executive directors received fees and a 
reimbursement of appropriate travel expenses. They received no 
other benefits. The Executive director (the Chief Executive) received 
a salary and a package of other benefits, including pension, healthcare 
and car allowance, where appropriate. In addition, he is eligible for 
the discretionary executive bonus scheme.

The funding of the executive bonus scheme is determined by 
performance against a balanced scorecard of objectives and 
measures that assess delivery against the purpose and long-term 
strategic objectives of the Society. 

Individual payments are assessed against a range of qualitative and 
quantitative objectives including key strategic implementations, 
conduct and alignment of behaviour with the Society’s culture and 
values.

50% of any bonus earned is deferred for 2 years, to underline the 
importance of rewarding performance that underpins the long-term 
sustainability of the Society. All payments made under the scheme 
are subject to malus and clawback.

Both the design of and payments made under the incentive schemes 
are subject to scrutiny by the Risk & Investment Committee. 
Performance objectives for the Chief Risk Officer are designed to 
effectively manage conflicts of interest.

The strategic effectiveness of all incentive schemes, as a part of overall 
Remuneration, is reviewed annually by the Remuneration Committee 
with independent external benchmarking being undertaken at least 
every 3 years. 

The overall remuneration paid to both executive and non-executive 
directors is externally validated each year using periodic benchmarking 
surveys that assess national and local pay and specifically refer to 
remuneration across a peer group of financial mutuals. 

The Executive Directors’ terms of engagement allow for termination 
by either party at six months’ written notice, with the exception of 
a Transfer of Engagements when the notice is increased to twelve 
months from the Society.

Corporate Governance Report
Corporate Governance is about the responsibilities of the Board and how they execute their duties in accordance with the Association of 

Financial Mutuals’ (AFM) Corporate Governance Code (the Code) which came into effect January 2019 and replaces the old AFM Annotated 

Code.  This Code sets out the principles that directors are expected to meet in fulfilling their obligations for effective corporate governance. 

The Society adheres to the policy of ‘apply and explain’. The Code has six principles:

The Code has six principles:

Purpose and 
Leadership

Board 
Composition

Director 
Responsibilities

Opportunity & 
Risk

Remuneration
Stakeholder 

relationships & 
engagement

Purpose & 
Leadership

The Board sees mutuality as an important part of the Society’s values which promotes tangible standards to its 
members and is relevant to a member’s needs and requirements now and in the future.  Therefore, the Society’s 
strategic purpose is ‘to ensure that everyone who deals with the Society feels confident that they are getting 
reliable cover that’s right for them and serves their financial needs’   and behind that a set of principles, which 
are then articulated to all employees and integrated into the different functions, including the Society’s Risk 
Appetite Statements. For the Society’s Board these values and purpose are incorporated in discussion and 
decision making, to ensure it operates in the best interest of its members.

The Board and management consider the best way to communicate this message is directly through our 
people, by fostering an ethos which celebrates our values which all people can embody in their daily work, with 
initiatives such as wellbeing days and social events.  

The Board and management review the Society’s culture through seeking feedback from regular meetings and 
engagement surveys, including the ability to provide suggestions.  

Board 
Composition

The Board is composed of Independent Non-Executive Directors and Executive Directors. In 2019, the Board 
welcomed a new Chair and Senior Independent Director (who is an independent non-executive director) 
chosen from the existing Board.  This was after a robust process requiring consideration of the mix of skills, 
experience, independence and behavioural indicators displayed by the Board. The Board recognises the value 
of independent representation. 

The Board then decided to enrich its skills and expertise further with the addition of two further Non-Executive 
Directors in 2019. 2019 also saw the appointment of a new Chief Executive Officer to drive the long-terms 
business strategy and serve the needs of the Society’s members. This enabled the Board to ensure a balance 
of expertise, diversity and objectivity to allow it to meet its strategic objectives by effective decision making 
and succession planning.

 The Annual General Meeting provides the process in which directors are subject to re-election and sets out 
how their contribution is important to the Society’s overall long-term sustainability.

The Board delegates parts of its responsibilities to sub committees and advisory arrangements. The sub 
committees have their own Terms of Reference.

The Board are committed to completing an external effectiveness governance review every three years, with 
commitment to an ongoing development plan allowing current and future skills to be enhanced.  

Director 
Responsibilities

The main objective of the introduction of the SM&CR was to ensure individual accountability.  This resulted 
in further enhancements to documentation to provide clarity on authority, accountability, role and conduct.  

There is a clear division of responsibilities between the Chair of the Board, the Senior Independent Director, 
Chairs of the Committees and the Chief Executive.  With Terms of Reference detailing the authorities delegated 
to each committee and required management information to allow challenge and provide assurance on 
system and controls. The responsibilities of committees that the director’s sit on are detailed on pages 15-17. 
The Board is confident in the integrity and quality of the information provided to it and used in their decision-
making. The Board uses a broad range of information sources which is accurate and issued in good time.

Opportunity & 
Risk

The Board has overall responsibility for the Risk Management Framework (outlined earlier in this report), which 
sets out how risks are to be categorised, assessed, monitored and reported, along with the methodology on 
how the interaction of risks, controls and changes to any emerging risk (external environment changes) are 
managed. The Board sets the Risk Appetite Statement, which provides the principal risks and the tolerance 
levels the Society is willing to take in order to identifying opportunities against the long-term strategic goals. 

The Society’s strategic purpose is ‘to ensure that everyone who deals with the Society feels confident that 
they are getting reliable cover that’s right for them and serves their financial needs’ and the Board sets the 
Risk Appetite Statement to consider and assess the creation and preservation of value over the long term.

Processes for identifying opportunities for innovation are followed and considered against the agreed risk 
appetite. Further details of the Society’s strategic purpose are explained in the Strategic Report on pages 10 
and 11.

The Society’s internal control framework has been developed to provide assurance to the committees and 
Board on the effectiveness of the process and procedures in place in order to minimise risk and achieve its 
strategic objectives.

Remuneration

The Remuneration of the Board and employees of the Society is aligned with regulatory principles and 

guidance and designed to support the purpose and long-term sustainability of the Society for its members.

Bonuses are determined against a balanced scorecard of measures, supported by personal objectives. and 

subject to malus and clawback as well as a 50% deferral for 2 years for executives and senior managers.



Strategic Report Corporate Governance Accounts & Financial 
Statements

Other information

British Friendly Society Annual Report and Accounts 2019

20

British Friendly Society Annual Report and Accounts 2019

21

Strategic Report Corporate Governance Accounts & Financial 
Statements

Other information

Conduct Risk
The Society considers the conduct risk framework to be a key control 

in preventing poor outcomes for its members. A thematic review of 

Conduct Risk was undertaken in 2019 which has resulted in a new 

working group whose remit is to report on key and emerging risks to 

all of the Society’s members including vulnerable customers. Further 

work is planned to develop the Society’s understanding of the needs 

of its members and respond accordingly so that the fair treatment 

of vulnerable customers is embedded into the culture of the Society.

The Society is committed to maintaining high standards of integrity 

and fairness in its dealings with members and ensures that all 

documentation and literature is clear, fair and not misleading.

Systems and documented procedures are in place to ensure that, 

if any member is dissatisfied, such problems will be handled with 

due care and sensitivity and will be thoroughly and impartially 

investigated. A member who feels dissatisfied with the result of such 

investigation has the right to refer their complaint to the Financial 

Ombudsman Service.

As with most financial services firms, the Society continues to review 

its understanding of conduct risk to ensure that its products and 

services do not unintentionally result in poor outcomes for members 

and customers.

Diversity and Inclusion
Diversity and inclusion is part of our overall culture – it is a core 

part of who we are as a business.  We are committed to ensuring 

this important aspect of our culture is embedded in our processes 

and practices at every level of the business. We believe diversity in 

decision-making is a key factor in how we will deliver our strategic 

objectives for the Society and our members. Therefore, we are 

committed to encouraging equality and diversity amongst our 

workforce. We are against unfair and unlawful discrimination. We 

believe that by promoting dignity and respect for all and creating 

an environment where individual differences are recognised, is 

good business practice and in line with our principles. We are also 

members of the Women in Finance Charter and are committed to 

achieving a gender balance in our senior leadership roles.

Significant Events Since The End Of The Financial 
Year
Coronavirus (COVID-19) Pandemic
At the time of writing this Report, the effects of a worldwide 

pandemic of Coronavirus (COVID-19) are being felt in the UK and 

are likely to have a significant impact on some of the Society’s 

members and the wider population.  The Society’s Actuary, together 

with Senior Management, has modelled a number of scenarios taking 

into account sickness and claims, effects on the Society’s investment 

portfolio and impact on business growth.  Although the impact on 

Capital and Solvency coverage are difficult to fully predict and have 

the potential to be significant, the Board remains confident that, with 

appropriate mitigating actions if necessary, the Society will continue 

as a going concern into the future and continue to serve its members.

The Board will publish the Solvency and Financial Condition Report 

in May 2020. This is a key public disclosure document under the 

Solvency II regulations and is available on the website.

Auditors
BDO LLP continue to serve as the Society’s auditors and the Board 

are grateful to them for their ongoing service, advice and opinions.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Stuart Purdy
Chairman

Statutory, Regulatory and Other Information
Responsibilities of the Board
Under the Friendly Societies Act 1992, the Board is required to 

prepare Financial Statements for each financial year which give a 

true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Society and of the 

income and expenditure of the Society for that period.  In preparing 

those Financial Statements, the Board is required to:

 � Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them 

consistently 

 � Make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and 

prudent

 � State whether applicable accounting standards have 

been followed, subject to any material departures 

disclosed and explained in the Financial Statements

 � Prepare the Financial Statements on the going concern 

basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the 

Society will continue in business

Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records 

which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial 

position of the Society and to enable them to ensure that the Financial 

Statements comply with the Friendly Societies Act 1992. They are 

responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Society and hence 

forth taking reasonable steps for the prevention and protection of 

fraud and other irregularities.

Principal Activities
The principal activity of the Society continued to be the provision of 

income protection insurance cover for its members in times of illness 

or accident and, for those legacy members with a Century, Holloway 

or a BA in Work Plan, a capital sum on retirement.

The provision of loan facilities to legacy members also continued, 

with loans being provided through the subsidiary company, BFS 

Member Services Limited which is a firm regulated by the Financial 

Conduct Authority for consumer credit activities.

The Board is of the opinion that all activities performed during the 

year by the Society and its subsidiary have been carried out within 

their respective powers.

Subsidiary Company

The results of the subsidiary company are disclosed in Note 10A to 

these financial statements. As at 31 December 2019 the Directors 

were Chris Radford, Robin Willison and Gordon Hull.

The Company has no employees and no remuneration was paid to 

the Directors.

Member Bonuses  And Apportionment
The Board announced the 2019 bonus rates as follows:

Statement Of Disclosure To Auditors
The Directors of the Society have taken reasonable steps to ensure 

that they are aware of any relevant audit information and that such 

information has been disclosed to the Society’s auditors.

Charitable Donations
In 2019 the Society partnered with Road Victims Trust and made a 

donation of £7,353.35 to the charity.

Prudential Risk
The Society has actively reviewed and maintained the required 

margin of solvency throughout 2019 in accordance with the PRA 

regulations. The Board has carried out a robust assessment of the 

principal risks facing the Society, including those that would threaten 

its business model, future performance, solvency and liquidity. The 

Society’s principal risks are summarised in the Strategic Report.

Taking into account the Society’s current position, the Board‘s 

expectation is that the Society will be able to continue in operation 

and meet its liabilities as they fall due over the five-year strategy 

period.

The Society’s business activities, together with principal risks and 

uncertainties are set out in the Strategic Report on pages 10 to 13. 

In addition, Notes to the Financial Statements include the Society’s 

objectives, policies and processes for managing its capital, its financial 

risk management objectives, details of its financial instruments, and 

its exposures to credit and liquidity risks. The Board of the Society 

believes that the Society is well placed to achieve its strategic 

objectives. As a consequence, the Board believes that the Society 

is well placed to manage its business risks successfully despite the 

current uncertain economic outlook.

The Board has a reasonable expectation that the Society has 

adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the 

foreseeable future.

Interest Rate

Apportionment 
Rates 

Final Bonus

1.75%

£1.20 
(non-commuted)

£1.80 
(commuted)

20.0%

Neil,
member since 2015

Member Stories

Neil’s Story

Neil has been a British Friendly member for 4 years. 

Unfortunately, in 2017 he became unwell, with pains in 

his stomach. He consulted his GP about this pain who 

recommended that Neil went for a colonoscopy.

Based on the results of the colonoscopy Neil was 

diagnosed with stage 2 Bowel Cancer. He then had 

surgery to treat the cancer. It was quite a long journey 

for Neil, but he had the peace of mind knowing that 

he had Income Protection cover in place for when he 

was out of work. Throughout his claim he was in touch 

with his Claims Manager – James. Neil said James was 

very empathetic, very understanding. 

As Neil neared a return to full-time work, his Claims 

Manager James rang to let him know about Recovery 

Support Benefit. A discretionary payment paid to 

long-term claimants, supporting them after they 

return to work. In addition to the weekly benefit he 

received during his claim, Neil received £1,292.32 as a 

Recovery Support Benefit payment.

Neil is now fully recovered and back to work. He 

said he had a rough ride, but knowing that if he had 

any issues and was off work, he could go to British 

Friendly for support was a great relief, because he has 

someone on his side.

Stakeholder 
relationships & 
engagement

Decisions made by the Society’s Board will have an effect, and be of interest, to many different stakeholders.  
Stakeholders include the Executive Directors, the Society’s members and also its employees. The community 
is also a stakeholder and the Society works hard to support local charities and events.  The Board also work 
with suppliers and business partners, such as OAC and LGT Vestra and maintains solid and professional 
stakeholder relationships.

The members of the Board are therefore conscious about how to deliver any message to its material 
stakeholders and how to engage and report to different audiences. Business performance has been presented 
earlier in this report along with key performance indicators and provides an understandable assessment of 
the company’s position for its members.

The Board ensures it has regular communication not only with the Executive Directors, but the senior 
management team and where possible all employees.  This allows the Board to interact with recognised 
stakeholders and understand how to support business practices and desired culture.

Reporting on the Society’s assessment of its current position, focuses on all areas of the member journey to 
allow an understanding of how the Society provides good customer outcomes.   

Earlier in this report, the financial risks of climate change have been noted and that a specific responsibility 
has been allocated to the Interim Finance Director. There is consideration as to how the Society manages the 
environmental impact it may have on both current and future stakeholders.
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Opinions
We have audited the financial statements of British Friendly Society Limited (the ‘Society’) for the year ended 31 December 2019 which 

comprise the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Financial Position, and Notes to the Financial Statements, including a 

summary of significant accounting policies. 

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, 

including Financial Reporting Standard 102, The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and and Republic of Ireland and Financial 

Reporting Standard 103 Insurance Contracts (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

In our opinion the Financial Statements:

 � give a true and fair view of the state of the Society’s affairs as at 31 December 2019 and of the Society’s surplus for the year then   

 ended;

 � have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and

 � have been prepared in accordance with the Friendly Societies Act 1992

Basis For Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities 

under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. 

We are independent of the Society in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in 

the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard as applied to public interest entities, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 

accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 

for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to report to you where:

 � the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not appropriate;   

 or

 � the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast significant    

 doubt about the Group’s or the Society’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least   

 twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of 

the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) that we identified, 

including those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts 

of the engagement team. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our 

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

Independent Auditor’s Report

The Risk Identified How Our Audit Responded To The Risk

Refer to the accounting policy in note 1.8 and 

further information given in notes 2.2, 4.3 and 

16.

There is an inherent risk that provisions for 

claims can be misstated due to the fact that 

estimates are necessarily involved, and as 

such, there is an element of subjectivity in any 

such provision.

The calculation of the Society’s insurance 

technical provisions requires management 

to make significant judgements about a 

variety of assumptions including (but not 

limited to) mortality assumptions, lapsed 

rate, investment yields, discount rates and the 

current expectation of future expenses.

We have assessed this area as being of 

significant risk to the audit and a key audit 

matter due to the significance of these 

amounts in deriving the Society’s results and 

because of the assumptions underpinning the 

calculation, which can be highly subjective.

In assessing the valuation of the insurance technical provisions, we performed the 

following procedures:

 � We engaged an independent actuarial expert to report to us on the actuarial 

methodology and assumptions applied in the calculation of the insurance 

technical provisions and the accuracy of the provisions themselves

 � When selecting our independent auditor’s expert we evaluated their 

independence, objectivity, and competence to provide the required audit 

support

 � We obtained and reviewed the actuarial reports prepared by the Society’s 

Actuarial Function Holder and our Independent Actuarial Expert also reviewed 

these documents in order to check that all relevant judgements and estimates 

have been considered by the Society’s Actuarial Function Holder 

 � With assistance from our Independent Actuarial Expert we reviewed and 

assessed the assumptions using in the calculation of the insurance technical 

provision to check these are reasonable and in line with acceptable parameters

 � We gained comfort over the data used by the Society’s Actuarial Function 

Holder in their calculation of the insurance technical provisions by agreeing the 

data used in the valuation of the insurance technical provisions to the Society’s 

accounting records

Based on the procedures carried out, we consider the assumptions and methodology 

used at 31 December 2019 to calculate the technical provisions recognised by the 

Society within its financial statements to be reasonable.

Valuation of investment properties - £5,865k (2018: £6,615k) and owner occupied property (disclosed in 
tangible fixed assets) - £705k (2018: £695)

The Risk Identified How Our Audit Responded To The Risk

Refer to the accounting policy in notes 1.10 

and 1.13, and further information given in notes 

2.1 and 10B.

Estimating the fair value of investment 

property requires the use of selection of 

assumptions, such as future rental income to 

determine expected yields.

Management engage independent property 

experts to assist in reviewing and selecting 

these assumptions. 

There is an inherent risk that the valuation of 

properties can be misstated due to the fact 

that estimates are necessarily involved, and as 

such, there is an element of subjectivity in any 

such valuation. We therefore consider this to 

be a key audit matter.

Our audit work in respect of the valuation of investment property included:

 � Reviewed and confirmed the independence and expertise of the Society’s 

external valuer

 � Reviewed the independent valuation report obtained by management and 

challenged both the competence of the valuer and the key assumptions adopted

 � Evaluated the assumptions used by management and their property experts 

for a sample of investment property. This included the comparison of a sample 

of the assumptions used by management’s property experts against published 

market benchmarks and the lease agreements between the Society and its 

tenants.  This has been done to identify whether any the assumptions used are 

inconsistent with current market information

 � We engaged with our internal expert to check whether the assumptions used in 

the valuation were reasonable

Based on the procedures carried out we consider that the valuations recognised in 

the financial statements are reasonable.

Determination of actuarial assumptions for valuation of insurance technical provisions - £34,450k (2018: 
£40,374k)

Going concern

The Risk Identified How Our Audit Responded To The Risk

Refer to the accounting policy in notes 1.1 and 

further information given in note 23.

Following the year end the Covid-19 virus has 

hit the UK and may have a significant impact on 

the business of the Society, being the provision 

of life income protection products. This impact 

is not limited to significant uncertainty and a 

fall in the value of the investment markets but 

also an, as yet, unquantified impact on claims 

on the Society.  

Management have concluded that the Society 

remains a going concern at the date of signing 

these financial statements.

The Society has adequate current coverage of 

the Solvency Capital Requirement (SCR) and 

stress testing of the Solvency position results 

in the Society remaining able to meet its 

Minimum Capital Requirement (MCR), prior to 

the implementation of management actions, 

such as reduction in bonuses. 

The stress scenarios have considered the 

combined incidence of significant stock 

market fall, increased morbidity experience, 

increased expenses and mass lapse. 

Due to the potential significance of this event 

we consider this to be a key audit matter.

In assessing the going concern status of the Society, we reviewed and considered 

the following:

 � Budgets and projections of the Society, including reworked solvency positions 

prior to signing for the 12 months from the date of approval of the financial 

statements. We considered the impact of Covid-19 on these budgets and 

management’s assessment of these. We have also considered the updated 

solvency position (SCR) at the date of signing and checked that the investment 

market falls in the post balance sheet period are reflected

 � The Own Risk and Solvency Assessment (ORSA) of the Society and the stress 

tests included therein, to check that the Society has considered appropriate 

stressed scenarios and that it remains able to meet its regulatory capital 

requirements

Our key observations are set out in the conclusions related to going concern section 

of our audit report.
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Our Application Of Materiality
Materiality is defined as the size or nature of a misstatement that, in 

the light of surrounding circumstances, makes it probable that the 

judgement of a reasonable user of the financial statements would 

have been changed or influenced as a result of the misstatement. 

Materiality is an important judgement we make as part of establishing 

our overall audit strategy and is used throughout the audit process, 

including in the evaluation of our audit work and when forming our 

audit opinion. Based on our professional judgement, materiality was 

determined as follows:

Basis of materiality

1% of the fund for future appropriation (“FFA”) (2018: 1% of 

the fund for future appropriation (“FFA”)). The fund for future 

appropriation was considered the most appropriate metric for the 

friendly society because the entity is a mutual organisation.

Overall Financial Statements Materiality £350,000 (2018: 360,000)

Performance materiality

Performance materiality £262,500 (2018: £262,500)

Performance materiality is the application of materiality at the 

individual account or balance level set at an amount to reduce to 

an appropriately low level the probability that the aggregate of 

uncorrected and undetected misstatements exceeds materiality 

for the financial statements as a whole.

Performance materiality represents 75% (2018: 75%) of overall 

financial statement materiality and was based on our overall 

assessment of the control environment and a low level of 

misstatements in the past.

Threshold for reporting misstatements 
to the Audit Committee

£7,000 (2018: £7,000)

Although misstatements below this threshold are also reported 

where the nature of the misstatement warrants reporting, such 

as where items are clearly wrong or they are indicative of fraud.

An Overview Of The Scope Of Our Audit

The Society is principally involved in providing income protection 

insurance policies in the UK. Our approach to the audit is risk based, 

with our audit work being tailored to ensure that sufficient assurance 

was gained for us to be able to give an opinion on the financial 

statements as a whole. Specific audit procedures were carried out 

on all risk areas identified, including the key audit matters detailed 

above, and on all material balances and classes of transactions. 

The audit team performed all aspects of the audit with the use of 

appointed experts in assessing insurance liabilities.

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and 

assessed the risks of material misstatement in the financial 

statements. In particular, we looked at where the directors made 

subjective judgements, for example in respect of the valuation of 

technical provisions which are subject to management judgement 

and estimation. 

Capability of the audit to detect irregularities, 
including fraud

We gained an understanding of the legal and regulatory framework 

applicable to the Society and the industry in which it operates, and 

considered the risk of acts by the Society which were contrary to 

applicable laws and regulations, including fraud. These included but 

were not limited to compliance with Friendly Societies Act 1992, PRA 

and FCA rules, FRS 102 and FRS 103. We obtained our understanding 

through internal and external training, and the use of an appropriately 

qualified and experienced audit team who specialise in the insurance 

sector.

We designed audit procedures to respond to the risk, recognising 

that the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is 

higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error. 

We focused on laws and regulations that could give rise to a material 

misstatement in the Society’s financial statements. Our tests included, 

but were not limited to:

 � agreement of the financial statement disclosures to underlying 

supporting documentation;

 � enquiries of management;

 � review of minutes of board meetings throughout the period; 

 � obtaining an understanding of the control environment in 

monitoring compliance with laws and regulations;

 � review of correspondence with the PRA and FCA; and

 � review of the Society’s Internal Audit reports.

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described 

above and the further removed non-compliance with laws and

regulations is from the events and transactions reflected in the 

financial statements, the less likely, as auditor of the financial 

statements, we would become aware of it. As in all of our audits we 

also addressed the risk of management override of internal controls, 

including testing journals and evaluating whether there was evidence 

of bias by the directors that might reasonably represent a risk of 

material misstatement due to fraud.

Other Information
The directors are responsible for the other information. The other 

information comprises the information included in the annual report 

& accounts, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s 

report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not 

cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise 

explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of 

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our 

responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, 

consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 

with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit 

or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such 

material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we 

are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement 

in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other 

information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude 

that there is a material misstatement of the other information, we are 

required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions On Other Matters Prescribed By The 
Friendly Societies Act 1992
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the 

audit, the information given in the Directors’ report for the financial 

year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent 

with the accounting records and the financial statements.

Matters On Which We Are Required To Report By 
Exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in 

relation to which the Friendly Societies Act 1992 requires us to report 

to you if, in our opinion:

 � proper accounting records have not been kept; or

 � the financial statements are not in agreement with the 

accounting records; or

 � we have not received all the information and explanations and 

access to documents that we require for our audit.

Responsibilities Of Directors
As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement set 

out on page 19, the directors are responsible for the preparation of 

the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true 

and fair view, and for such internal control as the directors determine 

is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that 

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible 

for assessing the Society’s ability to continue as a going concern, 

disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 

the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either 

intend to liquidate the Society or to cease operations, or have no 

realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s Responsibilities For The Audit Of The 
Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 

financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, 

whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 

includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 

but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 

ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 

material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 

expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 

basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the 

financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council’s 

website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.  This description 

forms part of our auditor’s report.

Other Matters Which We Are Required To Address
Following the recommendation of the audit committee, we were 

appointed by the Board of Directors on 14 November 2017 to audit 

the financial statements for the year ending 31 December 2017 and 

subsequent financial periods. The period of total uninterrupted 

engagement is 3 years, covering the years ending 31 December 2017 

to 31 December 2019.

The non-audit services prohibited by the FRC’s Ethical Standard 

were not provided to the Society and we remain independent of the 

Society in conducting our audit.

Our audit opinion is consistent with the additional report to the audit 

committee.

Use Of Our Report
This report is made solely to the Society’s members, as a body, in 

accordance with section 73 of the Friendly Societies Act 1992. 

Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the 

Society’s members those matters we are required to state to them 

in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent 

permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to 

anyone other than the Society and the Society’s members as a body, 

for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed..

John Perry (Senior Statutory Auditor)

John Perry (Senior Statutory Auditor)

For and on behalf of BDO LLP, Statutory Auditor

London, United Kingdom

20 May 2020

BDO LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and 

Wales (with registered number OC305127).

Specific Materiality 

To ensure that adequate audit consideration is given to items 

that impact the income statement alone (such as premiums, 

claims paid and operating expenses) we have applied a specific 

materiality when we tested these items.  Specific materiality 

was set at £222,000 (based on 1.5% of technical income) (2018: 

£175,000, based on 1.5% of technical income).
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Financial Statements
Statement Of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 December 2019

Technical Account - Long Term Business Note
Total 2019

£’000
Total 2018

£’000

Net earned premium income 5 10,586 8,889

Investment income 6A 3,199 2,155

Unrealised gains on investments 7A 3,613 236

Other technical income 25 22

Total technical income 17,423 11,302

Claims incurred, net of reinsurance
(Sickness benefits to members) (3,657) (3,131)

Change in Long-Term Business Provision 16 5,924 9,481

Net operating expenses 8B (9,718) (9,902)

Investment expense and charges (183) (151)

Unrealised losses on investments 7B (400) (2,873)

Excess of Income over Expenditure for the Year 9,389 4,726

Member withdrawals 16 (5,026) (5,426)

Net surplus / (deficit) for the year 4,363 (700)

Transfer from / (to) Fund for Future Appropriations 15 (4,363) 700

Balance on Technical Account - Long-Term Business - -

The above results relate wholly to continuing activities.

There were no items of comprehensive income.

The Society is a mutual organisation and therefore has no equity shareholders.  No statement of changes in equity has been presented as there are 

no balances to disclose. All surpluses for the year are transferred to the Fund for Future Appropriations.

As described in note 1.2, the above represents the Statement of Comprehensive Income of both the consolidated British Friendly Society group and 

the standalone British Friendly Society entity.

Statement Of Financial Position
For the year ended 31 December 2019

Note
Total 2019

£’000
Total 2018

£’000

Assets

Investments
Investment in subsidiary undertaking 10

Land and buildings (investment property) 5,865 6,615

Other financial investments 61,362 64,420

67,227 71,035

Debtors
11 230 115

Other Assets
Intangible fixed assets 12 2,344 111

Tangible fixed assets 13 807 774

Cash at bank and in hand 217 356

Prepayments and 
accrued income

Accrued investment income 463 530

Deferred acquisition costs 14 4,785 4,034

Other prepayments 352 261

Total Assets
76,425 77,216

Liabilities

Fund for Future 
Appropriations

15 39,313 34,950

Technical 
Provisions

16 34,450 40,374

Deferred Income, 
Creditors and 
Accruals

Deferred and Unearned Income 17 136 139

Insurance Creditors 685 707

Accruals 869 826

Other creditors including taxation and Social 
Security 972 220

Total Liabilities
76,425 77,216

As described in note 1.2, the above represents the Statement of Financial Position of both the consolidated British Friendly Society group and the 

standalone British Friendly Society entity.

These financial statements were approved by the Board at their meeting held on 03/04/2020 and were signed on their behalf by:

Chairman Chief Executive Officer
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2019

1. Significant accounting policies
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation 

of these financial statements are set out below. These policies 

have been applied consistently to all the years presented, unless 

otherwise stated.

1.1.  Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance 

with Financial Reporting Standard 102 and Financial Reporting 

Standard 103 as issued by the Financial Reporting Council 

and the Friendly Societies (Accounts and Related Provisions) 

Regulations 1994 (‘the Regulations’).

In preparing the financial statements of the Society, advantage 

has been taken of the disclosure exemption available under 

FRS102.  As such, no cash flow statement has been prepared 

for the Society.

In accordance with FRS 103 on Insurance Contracts, the 

Society has applied existing accounting practices for insurance 

contracts, modified as appropriate to comply with applicable 

standards.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical 

cost basis, except for the revaluation of certain properties and 

financial instruments.

The functional currency of the Society continues to be pounds 

sterling because that is the currency of the primary economic 

environment in which the Society operates. The consolidated 

financial statements are also presented in pounds sterling 

(£’000).

After making enquiries, the directors have a reasonable 

expectation that the Society has adequate resources to 

continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. The 

Society therefore continues to adopt the going concern basis 

in preparing its financial statements.  In making this assessment 

the Directors have considered trading forecasts and the 

Society’s solvency margin compared to its SCR together with 

managements growth projections. In addition, the Directors 

have considered the potential impact of the Covid-19 pandemic 

and are satisfied that there is no impact on the going concern 

status of the Society.

The Board will publish the Solvency and Financial Condition 

Report in May 2020.  This is a key public disclosure document 

under the Solvency ll regulations and is available on the Society’s 

website.

1.2. Basis of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets, 

liabilities and results of British Friendly Society Limited and its 

subsidiary undertaking drawn up to 31 December each year. All 

intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are 

eliminated on consolidation. The Statement of Comprehensive 

Income and Statement of Financial Position are the same for 

both the consolidated BFS Group and the Society itself and 

as such no separate consolidated or Society statements are 

presented.  Further details of the subsidiary are given in Note 

10(a).

1.3. Accounting for net earned premiums
Regular premiums on long-term insurance and participating 

investment contracts are recognised as income when due for 

payment. For single premium business, recognition occurs 

on the date from which the policy is effective. Reinsurance 

premiums payable are accounted for when due for payment.

1.4. Accounting for investment income
Investment income includes dividends, interest from investments 

at fair value and rental payments due from tenants. Dividends are 

included when received. Other investment income is included 

on an accruals basis.

1.5. Accounting for net gains/(losses) on investments
Realised gains and losses on investments are calculated as the 

difference between net sales proceeds and their valuation at the 

last Statement of Financial Position date or, where purchased 

during the year, the purchase price.

Unrealised gains and losses on investments represent the 

difference between the valuation of fair value assets at the 

Statement of Financial Position date and their valuation at the 

last Statement of Financial Position date or, where purchased 

during the year, the purchase price. 

1.6. Accounting for other income
Other income primarily relates to forfeitures where members 

have withdrawn money or cancelled contracts before their 

maturity date. It is recognised as charged to members on 

withdrawal of funds.

1.7. Accounting for claims and benefits
Maturity claims and regular annuity payments are accounted 

for when due for payment. Surrenders are accounted for on the 

earlier of the date when paid or when the policy ceases to be 

included within the long-term insurance contract liability.

Death claims and claims for sickness are accounted for when the 

Society is notified. The value of claims on participating contracts 

includes bonuses paid or payable. Claims values include related 

internal and external claims handling costs. Reinsurance 

recoveries are accounted for in the same period as the related 

claim.

The estimated cost of claims includes expenses to be incurred 

in settling claims and a deduction for the expected value of 

recoveries. However, it is likely that the final outcome will prove 

to be different from the original liability established.

Provisions are adjusted at the Statement of Financial Position 

date to represent an estimate of the expected outcome.

1.7. Accounting for long term insurance liabilities
The long-term business provision is determined by the Board 
on the advice of the Chief Actuary as part of the annual 
actuarial valuation of the Society’s long-term business. The 
provision is determined in accordance with the Solvency II 
rules as specified by the European Insurance and Occupational 
Pensions Authority. The long term business provision on a 
Solvency II basis is calculated as the present value of expected 
future cashflows (benefit payments and expenses less future 
premiums) plus a risk margin. The risk margin allows for the 
cost to a third party of holding Solvency II capital until all the 
contracts are settled.  The rate of interest used to discount 
the expected future cashflows is prescribed by regulation and 
the expected cashflows are calculated using historic Society 
experience and include reserves for claims which have occurred 
but not reported and a reserve for claims already in payment.   
This makes sufficient provision for future expenses of fulfilling 
the long-term contracts and includes a provision for existing 
bonuses and bonuses declared as a result of the valuation. 
Future bonuses are allowed for within the valuation assuming 
future rates of allocation bonus and final bonuses continue at 
current rates and that annual bonuses continue to be paid in line 

with prevailing risk free investment returns.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)
1.8. Accounting for mutual bonuses and interest

Bonuses to policyholders in the form of interest and bonuses are 

recognised in the Technical Account Long-Term Business when 

declared and Terminal Bonuses when paid.

1.9. Accounting for property, plant and equipment  
     (assumes no revaluations)

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less 

accumulated depreciation and any recognised impairment loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount 

or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it 

is probable that future economic benefits associated with the 

item will flow to the Society and the cost of the item can be 

measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is 

derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to 

the income statement during the financial period in which they 

are incurred.

The residual values and useful lives of tangible fixed assets 

are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of 

each reporting period if there are indicators of change. The 

carrying amount of an asset is written down immediately to its 

recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is assessed as 

greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

For owner occupied land and buildings, no depreciation is 

provided on the basis that such assets are held at fair value.  

The directors obtain a formal valuation of owner occupied 

property on a triennial basis. In the years between formal 

valuations the directors seek desktop reports from the Society’s 

property managers and base their valuations on those reports.  

Depreciation is charged on other assets so as to write off the 

cost or valuation of assets, over their estimated useful lives, less 

estimated residual value, using the straight-line method on the 

following bases:

Fixtures, Fittings and Furniture : 10%

Computer Equipment : 33.3%

1.10. Accounting for Intangible Assets
Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation 

and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is 

calculated, using the straight line method, to allocate the 

depreciable amount of the assets to their residual values over 

their estimated useful lives  follows using the following basis:

Software in use : 33%

Software under development (not yet in use) : 0%

The assets are reviewed for impairment if any factors come to 

light that indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

Software in development will be amortised once the asset has 

been fully implemented.

1.11. Accounting for Financial Assets
Financial assets, including debt and equity securities, are initially 

measured at transaction price (including transaction costs) and 

subsequently measured at fair value through the profit and loss 

account.

Financial Assets other than investments (including trade 

and other debtors) are initially measured at transaction price 

(including transaction costs) and subsequently held at cost, less 

any impairment  

A financial asset not carried at fair value through profit or loss 

is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there 

is objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is 

impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss event has 

occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, and that the 

loss event had a negative effect on the estimated future cash 

flows of that asset that can be estimated reliably.  

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured 

at amortised cost is calculated as the difference between its 

carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future 

cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest 

rate. For financial instruments measured at cost less impairment, 

an impairment is calculated as the difference between its 

carrying amount and the best estimate of the amount that the 

Society would receive for the asset if it were to be sold at the 

reporting date. Interest on the impaired asset continues to be 

recognised through the unwinding of the discount. Impairment 

losses are recognised in profit or loss. When a subsequent event 

causes the amount of impairment loss to decrease, the decrease 

in impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.

1.12. Accounting for Non-Financial Assets
The carrying amounts of the Society’s non-financial assets, other 

than investment property, are reviewed at each reporting date 

to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If 

any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount 

is estimated. The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-

generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair 

value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated 

future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a 

pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments 

of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. 

For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be 

tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group 

of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that 

are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or 

groups of assets (the “cash-generating unit” (CGU)).  

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an 

asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. 

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment 

losses recognised in respect of CGUs are allocated first to reduce 

the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the units, and 

then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in the 

unit (group of units) on a pro rata basis.   

An impairment loss is reversed if and only if the reasons for the 

impairment have ceased to apply.    

Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed 

at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has 

decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed 

only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not 

exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, 

net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had 

been recognised.

1.13. Accounting for Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified according to the substance of 

the financial instruments contractual obligations, rather than the 

financial instrument’s legal form.   Financial liabilities are initially 

measured at transaction price (after deducting transaction 

costs) and subsequently held at amortised cost. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)
1.14. Accounting for Investment Property

Investment property, which is property held to earn rentals 
and/or for capital appreciation, is stated at its fair value at 
the reporting date. Gains or losses arising from changes in 
the fair value of investment property are included in profit or 
loss for the period in which they arise. 

An external independent valuer, having appropriate 
recognised professional qualifications and current 
experience of the location and type of property being 
valued, values the Society’s investment property triennially. 
Fair values are based on market values. Market values 
are the estimated amount for which a property could be 
exchanged on the date of the valuation between a willing 
buyer and a willing seller in an arm’s length transaction after 
proper marketing.

In the years between formal valuations the directors seek 
desktop reports from the Society’s property managers and 
base their valuations on those reports. 

Where current prices cannot be established by reference to 
an active market, valuations are prepared by considering the 
aggregate of the estimated net cash flows to be received 
from renting the property. A yield that recognises the 
specific risks inherent in the net cash flows is then applied 
to the net annual rental cash flows to determine the value.

1.15. Accounting for cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and balances 

with banks, and investments in money market instruments which 

are readily convertible, being those with original maturities of 

three months or less. Cash and cash equivalents are measured at 

fair value, based on the relevant exchange rates at the reporting 

date.

1.16. Accounting for leases
Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to income 

on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of 

the Society at the lower of the assets fair value at the date 

of acquisition and the present value of the minimum lease 

payments. The related liability to the lessor is included in the 

statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation. 

Finance costs, which represent the difference between the total 

leasing commitment and the fair value of the assets acquired, are 

charged to the income statement over the term of the relevant 

lease so as to produce a constant periodic rate of charge on the 

remaining balance of the obligations for each accounting period.

1.17. Accounting for retirement benefits
The Society operates a defined contribution pension plan under 

which the Society pays fixed contributions into a separate 

entity. The Society has no legal or constructive obligations to 

pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient 

assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee 

service in the current and prior periods. 

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are 

charged as an expense as they fall due. Payments made to 

state-managed retirement benefit schemes are dealt with as 

payments to defined contribution plans where the Society’s 

obligations under the schemes are equivalent to those arising in 

a defined contribution retirement benefit plan.

1.18.Accounting for deferred acquisition costs
In respect of insurance contracts, acquisition costs comprise all 

direct and indirect costs incurred in writing new contracts. The 

Society defers only the commission paid to agents and expenses 

this over 36 months which is the clawback period within agency 

contracts.  All other direct and indirect acquisition costs are 

expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

1.19.Accounting for foreign currencies
Investment assets and liabilities denominated in foreign 

currencies are translated to sterling at rates of exchange ruling 

at the end of the year. Purchases and sales of investments 

denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates 

prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Exchange gains 

and losses are dealt with in that part of the Statement of 

Comprehensive Income in which the underlying transaction is 

reported.

1.20.Accounting for the Fund for Future    Appropriations
The Fund for Future Appropriations represents the excess 

of assets over and above the long-term insurance contract 

liabilities and other liabilities. It represents amounts that have 

yet to be formally declared as bonuses for the participating 

contract policyholders together with the free assets of the 

Society. Any profit or loss for the year arising through the 

Statement of Comprehensive Income  is transferred to or from 

the Unallocated divisible surplus.

2.   Critical accounting judgements and estimates
In preparing the financial statements, management is required to 

make estimates and assumptions which affect reported income, 

expenses, assets, liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets 

and liabilities. Use of available information and application of 

judgement are inherent in the formation of estimates, together 

with past experience and expectations of future events that 

are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual 

results in the future could differ from such estimates.

The more critical areas, where accounting estimates and 

judgements are made, are set out below.

2.1. Investment Property (see also note 10b)
Advice is obtained from property experts to determine the fair 

value of investment property.  Judgement is therefore required 

to make this assessment of fair value.

When a property is disposed of there is the potential that the 

amount released may be different to the carrying value in the 

financial statements.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

2.   Critical accounting judgements and estimates     
     (continued)
2.2. Long Term Business Provision (see also note 16)

The valuation of liabilities is calculated as the expected present 

value of expected future cashflows plus a risk margin.  The risk 

margin allows for the cost to a third party of holding capital until 

all the contracts are settled.

The assumptions used for mortality, morbidity and longevity 

are based on standard industry or reinsurers’ tables, adjusted 

where appropriate to reflect the Society’s own experience. The 

assumptions used for investment returns, expenses, lapse and 

surrender rates are based on current market yields, product 

characteristics, and relevant claims experience. 

The assumptions used for investment returns and discount rates 

are based on current market risk free rates and are prescribed 

by EIOPA. Due to the long-term nature of these obligations, the 

estimates are subject to significant uncertainty.

One key assumption underlying these techniques is the 

actuarial assessment of claims payment patterns and whether 

assumptions regarding the prior years payment patterns 

continue to apply.

Allowance for one-off occurrences or changes in legislation, 

policy conditions or portfolio mix are also made in arriving at 

the estimated ultimate cost of claims in order that it represents 

the most likely outcome, taking account of all the uncertainties 

involved. To the extent that the ultimate cost is different from 

the estimate, where experience is better or worse than that 

assumed, the surplus or deficit will be credited or charged to 

gross benefits and claims within the Statement of Comprehensive 

Income in future years.

Capital Risk Management
This section details the capital and risk management approach of 

the Society. The Society seeks to create value for its members by 

investing in the development of the business while maintaining 

an appropriate level of capital available.

The risk appetite for each type of principal risk is set based on 

the amount necessary to meet the PRA’s capital requirements.

3.   Capital Management
3.1. Policies and objectives

The Society’s key capital management objectives are:

i. To ensure the Society’s strategy can be implemented   

 and is sustainable;

ii. To ensure the Society’s financial strength and to support   

the risks it takes on as part of its business;

iii. To give confidence to policyholders and other    

 stakeholders who have relationships with the    

 Society; and

iv. To comply with capital requirements imposed by its UK   

  regulator, the PRA.

These objectives are reviewed at least annually, and benchmarks 

are set by which to judge the adequacy of the Society’s capital. 

The capital position is monitored against those benchmarks to 

ensure that sufficient capital is available to the Society.

The assessment depends on various actuarial and other 

assumptions about potential changes in market prices, future 

operating experience and the actions management would take 

in the event of particular adverse changes in market conditions.

The Solvency Capital requirement is the capital required when a 

prescribed range of stress tests are applied. As a minimum the 

Society must hold sufficient capital to meet the PRA’s Minimum 

Capital Requirement.

Management intends to maintain surplus capital in excess of its 

solvency capital requirement and to maintain an appropriate 

additional margin over this to absorb changes in both capital 

and capital requirements.

The Society complied with all externally imposed capital 

requirements to which it was subject throughout the reporting 

period.

3.2. Measurement and Monitoring of Capital
The capital position of the Society is monitored on a regular 

basis and reviewed formally on a monthly basis by the Senior 

Management Team. Objectives are reviewed and benchmarks 

are set and agreed by the Board with which to judge the 

adequacy of the Society’s capital and ensure that sufficient 

capital is available. 

The Society’s capital requirements are forecast on a regular 

basis and compared against the available capital and the 

Society’s minimum internal rate of return. The internal rate of 

return forecast to be achieved on potential investments is also 

measured against minimum required benchmarks taking into 

account the risks associated with the investment.

In the event that sufficient capital is not available, actions would 

be taken either to reduce the level of profit allocation and bonus 

paid to members, raise additional capital or to reduce the amount 

of risk accepted thereby reducing the capital requirement 

through, for example, reinsurance, reducing business volumes 

or a change in investment strategy.

3.3. Available capital – Long-term insurance contracts
All contracts written by the Society are long term insurance 

contracts.  They can be further analysed into those policies 

which have a contractual entitlement to participate in profit 

sharing (these are Holloway and Century policies) and those 

which do not, called Protect policies.

The liabilities in respect of the Society’s participating (with-

profits) and non-participating business are determined in 

accordance with the regulations of the PRA.

An allowance is made for actions that management would 

take in adverse conditions, such as reducing bonus rates. The 

assets are taken at market value, estimated where required, 

with an allowance for the future surplus expected to arise on 

the non-participating business written in the participating 

fund. The whole of the available capital resources within each 

participating fund is available to meet the regulatory and other 

solvency requirements of the fund. 

Capital Statement 
Life Business UK non-
participating

Total 2019
£’000

Total 2018
£’000

Total capital resources before 
deductions

39,313 34,948

Adjustments to assets (2,383) (130)

Total available capital 
resources

36,930 34,818
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

3.   Capital Management (continued)
3.4.Sensitivity of long-term insurance contract   
      liabilities

The value of the long-term insurance contract liabilities is 

sensitive to changes in market conditions and in the demographic 

assumptions used in the calculation, such as mortality and 

persistency rates.

Market conditions – Assumptions are made about future 

investment returns and interest rates when valuing the liabilities, 

based on current market conditions. These also have an effect 

on the value placed on the assets held to support the liabilities. 

An adverse change in market conditions may therefore reduce 

the level of the available capital resources.

Demographic assumptions – Changes in the mortality, 

morbidity, expense or persistency experienced by the business 

may result in the need to change the assumptions used to value 

the liabilities. This may increase or reduce the value placed 

on the liabilities. The sensitivity of the liabilities to changes in 

the assumptions varies according to the type of business. For 

example, a change in mortality rates has a different impact for 

annuity liabilities than for term assurance liabilities.

4.   Risk Management and Control
4.1.Risk Management

Risk Management has a regular place on agendas for the Senior 

Management Team, Risk and Investment Committee and Board.

Details of the Society’s risk management framework and 

methods use to mitigate risks are shown on pages 12 to 13 of the 

Strategic report.

The Society uses its Own Risk and Solvency Assessment (ORSA), 

Risk Appetite Statement and Risk Register to monitor current 

and potential risks that could affect its solvency adversely.

An overall risk tolerance is established which is expressed as a 

minimum level of solvency above the PRA minimum threshold.

Individual risk appetites are then established for each of the 

primary risks the Society faces.  If these appetite limits are 

breached then management actions would have to be taken 

which may include:

 � Reducing annual bonuses and/or final bonuses

 � Reducing annual interest rate

 � Reducing costs

 � Raising premiums

No breach of our risk tolerance or risk appetite has occurred in 

the year ended 31 December 2019.

A summary of the primary risks the Society faces along with 

sensitivity analysis to show impact on capital are as follows:

4.2. Strategic Risks
Strategic risks are those which affect the business model of the 

Society.  They can come through competitive pressures, failure 

to develop our own proposition and product in line with the 

market or economic and political changes.

In our modelling we see strategic risks manifesting themselves 

in the following ways:

Lower growth volumes

The Society allocates resources based on growth assumptions.  

If these are not met then the income may not support the cost 

base of the Society.

Higher lapses

Future profits on contracts assume a contracts contract 

longevity.  If lapses increase then that profit may be reduced.

The table presented below demonstrates the sensitivity of 

available capital to movements in assumptions on strategic risks:

A 10% sensitivity has been used on the basis that it is considered 

to be a possible outcome, and one that provides the user of the 

financial statements with an indication of the sensitivities.

When lapse rates change, future per policy expenses are likely 

to change. This has not been reflected in the value of change 

above.  The sensitivity to changing per policy expenses which 

would occur if projected business volumes were not met are 

shown within operational risks below.

4.3. Insurance Risk
This is the risk associated with writing contracts of insurance.  

Each contract has an inherent risk that the claims experience 

will be higher than estimated.  The contracts the Society writes 

are long term insurance contracts which means once entered 

into the Society does not have the right to cancel them.  This 

increases the risk in this area.  The Society only provides income 

protection insurance and no other classes.  All insured members 

are resident in the UK when cover is taken out.

Risks arise from morbidity, persistency (lapses) and expense 

variances.  Systems are in place to monitor and mitigate 

exposure to all of these risks.

Details of the Society’s insurance technical provisions are 

included in notes 16 and 22.

The table presented below demonstrates the sensitivity of 

available capital to movements in assumptions on insurance 

risks:

A 10% sensitivity has been used on the basis that it is considered 

to be a possible outcome, and one that provides the user of the 

financial statements with an indication of the sensitivities.

Change in lapse assumptions
Change in 
Variable

Change in 
Available 
Capital
£’000

Change in lapse assumptions +10% (5,958)

Variable
Change in 
Variable

Change in 
Available 
Capital
£’000

Change in morbidity 
(%CMIR12) inceptions/
recoveries

+10% (5,790)

Change in morbidity 
(%CMIR12) inceptions/
recoveries

-10% 5,371

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

4.   Risk Management and Control (continued)
4.4.Credit Risk

This is the risk that the Society suffers financial loss as a result of another party’s failure to meet their financial obligations in a timely 

manner.

The table below shows the assets of the Society that are subject to credit risk along with their respective credit ratings:

The Society has managed concentration risk through holding a diversified portfolio, apart form UK Gilts, no more than 5% of the 

investment portfolio is held with any one counterparty.

No separate sensitivity analysis is carried out for credit risk as this is included within the technical provisions calculation in Note 16.

2019

AAAm
£’000

AAA
£’000

AA
£’000

A
£’000

BBB
£’000

BB
£’000

CCC
£’000

Unrated
£’000

Total
£’000 

Government 
Securities

- - 12,048 - - - - - 12,048

Corporate Bonds - 1,681 1,265 1,030 16,297 - - - 20,273

Bank deposits - - 1,000 - - - - - 1,000

Cash and cash 
equivalents 

8,717 - - 841 - - - 9,558

Unit Trusts/ 
OEICs 

7,608 7,608

Equities / Property 
Funds

10,723 10,723

Secured mortgages 65 65

Loan to Subsidiary 554 554

Total Assets 61.829

2018

AAAm
£’000

AAA
£’000

AA
£’000

A
£’000

BBB
£’000

BB
£’000

CCC
£’000

Unrated
£’000

Total
£’000 

Government 
Securities

- - 10,923 - - - - - 10,923

Corporate Bonds - 1,699 1,553 1,266 16,521 1,331 - - 22,370

Bank deposits - - 1,000 - - - - - 1,000

Cash and cash 
equivalents 

10,061 - - 104 - - - 10,165

Unit Trusts/ 
OEICs 

7,537 7,537

Equities / Property 
Funds

12,270 12,270

Secured mortgages (554) (554)

Loan to Subsidiary 1,140 1,140

Total Assets 64,851
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

4.   Risk Management and Control (continued)
4.5.Market Risk

As the Society holds significant levels of investments it has 

exposure to:

 � Investment shocks, including movements in property   

 values

 � Movements in interest rates

 � Currency exposure

The table presented below demonstrates the sensitivity of the 

best estimate liability to movements in assumptions on market 

risks: 

The above sensitivities have been used on the basis that they 

are considered to be possible outcomes. The Covid-19 pandemic 

saw a fall in overall investment asset values by 4.7% in Q1 2020 

and these sensitivities are therefore considered still to be valid.

When interest rates change, any movement in the available 

capital is partially offset by an opposite change in the value of 

assets.

The Society’s Investment Manager conducts Asset/Liability 

matching to ensure assets and liabilities are matched as closely 

as possible.

This has not been reflected in the value of change above.

The table below shows the split of denomination of currencies 

where investment assets may be subject to currency exposure:

A 1% fluctuation in exchange rates would change the value of 

the above assets by £38k (2018: £92k)

A 1% sensitivity has been used on the basis that it is considered 

to be a possible outcome, and one that provides an indication 

of the sensitivities.

The Society does not consider itself exposed to liquidity risk 

as short term liquidity needs for claims payable are covered by 

cash and cash equivalents.

The Society has no obligation to repay any principal in its 

contracts of insurance.

FRS 102, under paragraphs 11.41(a) and 11.41(d) requires financial 

instruments held at fair value to be disclosed according to the 

following fair value measurement hierarchy:

Level 1 : Quoted prices (observable market prices for identical 

assets and liabilities)

Level 2 : Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable 

for the asset or liability, i.e. non quoted prices or values derived 

from prices

Level 3 : Values that are not based on observable market data

All other assets and liabilities are level 2.  The Society holds no 

level 3 financial instruments.

4.6. Operational Risk
Operational risks can occur in many ways and are generally 

modelled as having an impact on the running costs/expenses 

of the business.

The table presented below demonstrates the sensitivity of 

available capital to movements in assumptions on market risks:

A 10% sensitivity has been used on the basis that it is considered 

to be a possible outcome, and one that provides an indication 

of the sensitivities.

Change in 
Variable

Change in 
Available 
Capital
£’000

Change in interest rates used 
to discount cashflows

+1% 1,958

Change in interest rates used 
to discount cashflows

-1% (4,770)

Interest Rate Up Stress as 
defined by EIOPA Solvency II 
Standard Formula

(2,174)

Fall in equity values -10% (1,694)

Fall in property values -10% (657)

Assets denominated in:
2019
£’000

2018
£’000

Sterling
58,163 55,111

US Dollars
3,047 6,532

Euro
- 816

Other
- 1,806

Total
61,210 64,265

The value of Level 1 assets held 
by the Society is:

2019
£’000

2018
£’000

Level 1 (including cash based 
investments held at fair value)

61,210 64,265

Change in 
Variable

Change in 
Available 
Capital
£’000

Expense allowances +10% (2,515)

Expense allowances -10% 2,515

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

5. Premium Income
Total 2019

£’000
Total 2018

£’000

Income Protection business - regular premiums 10,588 8,890

Reinsurance premiums (2) (1)

Net earned premium income 10,586 8,889

6A. Investment Income
Total 2019

£’000
Total 2018

£’000

Income from land and buildings 516 531

Income from investments at fair value through income:

 � Income from loans with subsidiary 73 60

 � Income from listed investments 1,633 1,892

 � Income from other investments 1 -

Gains / (losses) on the realisation of investment assets 976 (328)

3,199 2,155

6B. Future Minimum Lease Income From Investment Property
Total 2019

£’000
Total 2018

£’000

Future minimum lease payments, consisting of rental income due from tenants 

of properties owned by the Society, are due as follows:

 �Within one year 507 531

 � Between one and five year 1,435 1,636

 �More than 5 years 1,554 1,869

3,496 4,036

7A. Unrealised Gain On Investments
Total 2019

£’000
Total 2018

£’000

Investments at fair value through income:

 � Revaluation of Investment Properties 10 236

 � Debt securities 878 -

 � Equity Securities 2,725 -

Net gain on investments 3,613 236

7B. Unrealised Loss On Investments
Total 2019

£’000
Total 2018

£’000

 � Revaluation of Investment Properties - (1,283)

 � Debt securities - (1,590)

 � Equity Securities (400) -

Net loss on investments (400) (2,873)
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8. Operating Costs
Total 2019

£’000
Total 2018

£’000

8A. Acquisition costs:

 � Staff costs 2,038 1,883

 � System development 129 135

 �Marketing & Promotions 744 640

 � Underwriting & Medical reports 182 147

 � Commissions 3,259 2,308

6,352 5,113

8B. Administration costs:
Total 2019

£’000
Total 2018

£’000

 � Staff costs 1,378 1,177

 � Board fees and expenses 250 250

 � Actuarial Function Holder’s fees 134 145

 � Legal and professional fees 117 158

 � Depreciation of fixed assets 110 240

 �Maintenance of software and equipment 755 725

 �Write off in respect of IT system ** - 1,661

 �Other administration costs 622 433

3,366 4,789

Total 2019
£’000

Total 2018
£’000

9,718 9,902

** The write off of IT costs in 2018 relates to the costs incurred in a project to develop a new primary operating system for the Society.  The project 

was abandoned during 2018 following the provider being unable to fulfil the contract.

8C. Net operating costs include the following:
Total 2019

£’000
Total 2018

£’000

Depreciation and amortisation charge for the year 109 240

Auditors remuneration (exclusive of VAT)

 � Audit 34 32

 � In respect of costs of Reviewing Actuary (engaged by Auditor) 17 17

 � In respect of other services provided - -

Actuaries remuneration (exclusive of VAT) 

 � Actuarial Function Holder & With Profits Actuary 98 104

 �Other fees 13 17

Amortisation of Deferred Acquisition Costs 2,570 2,068

Net Operating Costs

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

9. Employee Benefits Expense Total 2019 Total 2018

The average monthly number of persons employed by the Society in the year 
was as follows:

 � Non-Executive Board members 5 5

 � Staff - Administration 24 22

 � Staff - Acquisition 28 24

57 51

The aggregate staff payroll costs were as follows: Total 2019
£’000

Total 2018
£’000

 �Wages and salaries 2,892 2,586

 � Social Security costs 315 335

 �Other pension costs 212 221

3,419 3,142

Wages and salaries includes a deferred bonus provision of £ 55,486 payable in 2022 ( 2018: £ 70,337 payable in 2021) in line with the senior 

management bonus scheme introduced in 2018.

9. Employee Benefits Expense (continued)
Total 2019

£’000
Total 2018

£’000

The aggregate remuneration of key management personnel, being those 
persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and 
controlling the activities of the entity, were as follows:

 �Wages and salaries 635 645

 � Social Security costs 31 79

 �Other pension costs 17 16

683 740

Full details of directors’ emoluments are contained in the Directors Remuneration report on pages 17 and 18.

Key management personnel wages and salaries includes a deferred bonus provision of £14,962 payable in 2022 (2018: £ 18,412 payable in 2021) in 

line with the senior management bonus scheme introduced in 2018. The above figures include payments made and a crystallisation of contractual 

commitments amounting to £ 168,510 in respect of the outgoing interim Chief Executive following his resignation from office.

Key management personnel wages and salaries includes payments made to an external agency in respect of the Interim Finance Director who 

worked as a contractor throughout 2019.

10A. Subsidiary undertaking
Total 2019

£’000
Total 2018

£’000

Shares at cost 100 100

The subsidiary undertaking, British Friendly Member Services Limited, issues loans to members with capital balances secured on those capital 

balances. The other component of its balance sheet is intercompany, therefore loans to subsidiary at the British Friendly Society level are merely 

reclassified as loans at the consolidated level.  There are no other changes to the British Friendly Society’s statement of financial positon on 

consolidation. The financial statements of that company show a profit of £nil for the year to 31 December 2019 (2018 - profit of £nil). The net 

liabilities of the subsidiary amounted to £nil at the year end (2018 - £nil). The subsidiary incurs only a small amount of expenditure and has little 

profit or loss activity, all costs are recharged to the British Friendly Society and therefore the Statement of Comprehensive income for the British 

Friendly Society is the same as that for the consolidated Group.



Strategic Report Corporate Governance Accounts & Financial 
Statements

Other information

British Friendly Society Annual Report and Accounts 2019

38

British Friendly Society Annual Report and Accounts 2019

39

Strategic Report Corporate Governance Accounts & Financial 
Statements

Other information

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

10B. Freehold Land and Buildings
Investment Property

Total 2019
£’000

Total 2018
£’000

Valuation

At 1 January 2019 6,615 6,629

Additions - -

Disposals (350) -

Revalution (400) (14)

Reclassified to Tangible assets - -

At 31 December 2019 5,865 6,615

The Society’s land and buildings were valued at 31 December 2019 by Mr D J Tillison FRICS, MCI.Arb of Kirkby & Diamond, Chartered Surveyors, 

Milton Keynes. Other investment assets are stated at market value. 

In line with FRS 102 the property which the Society uses as its primary office is classified as a fixed asset and is disclosed in note 13.

10C. Other Investments
Total 2019

£’000
Total 2018

£’000

Dated

 � Government Securities 11,981 10,866

 � Corporate Bonds 19,908 22,473

 � Corporate Bonds Bank deposits 1,000 1,000

Undated

 � Unit Trusts/ OEICs 2,263 2,443

 � Equities / Property Funds 16,032 16,853

 � Secured mortgages 65 75

 � Loan to Subsidiary 554 562

 � Cash and cash equivalents 9,558 10,149

61,361 64,420

Total of listed investments included above 50,184 52,634

The loan to subsidiary disclosed above equates to loans issued by the subsidiary.  At the consolidated level, loan to subsidiary would be replaced 

by loans to members of an equivalent amount.  The total amount of other financial investments would remain unchanged. Loans to members are 

currently repayable within a period of 1 to 5 years with an interest charge of 5.15% . Loans amounting to £381,420 fall due after more than 1 year.

11. Debtors Arising Out Of Direct Insurance Operations
Total 2019

£’000
Total 2018

£’000

Member 218 97

Other debtors 12 19

Total of listed investments included above 230 115

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

12. Intangible Assets
Computer 
Software

£’000

Software under 
development

£’000

Total 2019
£’000

Cost:

At 1 January 2019 3,650 - 3,650

Additions 90 2,233 2,323

Disposals - - -

At 31 December 2019 3,740 2,233 5,973

Depreciation:

At 1 January 2019 3,539 - 3,539

Charge for the year 90 - 90

Impairment - - -

At 31 December 2019 3,629 - 3,629

Net book value:

At 31 December 2019 111 2,233 2,344

At 31 December 2018 111 - 111

13. Tangible Assets
Office 

Property
£’000

Fixtures and 
Fittings
£’000

Computer 
Equipment

£’000

Total 2019
£’000

Cost:

At 1 January 2019 695 101 56 852

Additions - 14 28 42

Disposals 10 - - 10

At 31 December 2019 705 115 84 904

Depreciation:

At 1 January 2019 - 41 37 78

Charge for the year - 11 8 19

Impairment - - - -

At 31 December 2019 - 52 45 97

Net book value:

At 31 December 2019 705 63 39 807

At 31 December 2018 695 60 19 774

The owner occupied office property is carried at fair value.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

Deferred acquisition costs relate to commission paid to agents on the sale of income protection insurance contracts. At 31 December 2019 the 

amount of acquisition costs that will not be recognised in the income for more than one year is £2,663,304 (2018: £ 2,207,288).

14. Deferred Acquisition Costs
Total 2019

£’000
Total 2018

£’000

At 1 January 2019 4,034 3,751

Acquisition costs deferred 3,371 2,354

Amortisation (2,570) (2,068)

Increase in provision for non recoverable 
costs

(50) (3)

At 31 December 2019 4,785 4,034

15. Fund For Future Appropriations
Total 2019

£’000
Total 2018

£’000

Balance at 1 January 2019 34,950 35,650

Transfer to / (from) technical account 
Long term business

4,363 (700)

Balance at 31 December 2019 39,313 34,950

16. Technical Provisions
Total 2019

£’000
Total 2018

£’000

Balance at 1 January 2019 40,374 49,855

Expected cashflows over the year (1,797) (2,171)

Unwind of discount rate 460 729

Model changes (3,472) 193

Assumption changes 4,217 2,177

Actual data movements 4,404 2,741

New business written during the year (13,264) (6,880)

Other adjustments - -

Change in Risk Margin 2,777 (6,553)

Change in Deferred acquisition costs 751 283

Balance at 31 December 2019 34,450 40,374

The insurance technical provisions are calculated using cash flows including commission costs.  As such the technical provisions are initially 

calculated inclusive of commission, including deferred acquisition costs.  An adjustment is made to the technical provisions by including a provision 

for those deferred acquisition costs.

As part of the changes to adopt Solvency II regulations, members funds are now included within technical provisions above using a discount factor 

to reflect the expected future cash flows.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

The analysis below shows the movement to members balances and their undiscounted value as at  31 December 2019.

This information is presented for memorandum purposes only.

16. Technical Provisions (continued)
Total 2019

£’000
Total 2018

£’000

Bonuses and rebates

Interest on members’ balances 908 933

Apportionment 1,782 1,880

Interest and apportionment paid to 
withdrawn members

754 802

3,444 3,615

Withdrawals during the year

Death 1,064 1,289

Retirements 1,399 1,594

Resignations and lapses 1,776 1,854

Other withdrawals 762 667

Apportionments forfeited - taken to 
income

25 22

5,026 5,426

Net decrease in member funds during the 
year

(1,583) (1,811)

Balance at 1 January 2019 56,130 57,941

Balance at 31 December 2019 54,547 56,130

17. Deferred and Unearned Income
Total 2019

£’000
Total 2018

£’000

Deferred Income 119 125

Unearned premiums 17 14

136 139
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18.  Pension Costs
The Society operates a staff pension scheme based on defined 

contributions whereby the Society contributes  15% of the basic 

salary of qualifying members.

19. Capital Commitments
At 31 December 2019 the Society had no capital commitments 

(2018 - nil).

20. Board Members’ Loans And Transactions
There were no amounts outstanding at either 31 December 2019 

or 31 December 2018 in relation to loans to members of the 

Board and related parties.

The register of loans to members of the Board is available for 

inspection at the registered office of the Society.

21. With-Profits Actuary
Statement in accordance with Rule 9.36 of the 
Accounts and Statements Rules

The Society has made a request to the With-Profits Actuary 

to furnish it with the particulars specified in Rule 9.36 of the 

Accounts and Statements Rules and the particulars furnished 

pursuant to the request are identified below:

a. The With-Profits Actuary of the Society for the period 1 

January 2019 to 14 November 2019 was C Critchlow FIA, an 

employee of OAC plc. The With-Profits Actuary of the Society 

for the period 15 November 2019 to 31 December 2019 was S 

Butters FIA, an employee of OAC plc subject to FCA approval. 

They were not members of the Society or the subsidiary of the 

Society at any time during the year.

b. They had no pecuniary interest in any transactions with the 

Society subsisting at any time during the period.

c. The only remuneration was the fees for professional services 

paid to OAC plc for the services provided by the firm, and 

the sum payable in this respect amounted to £118,200 (2018 - 

£104,135) exclusive of Value Added Tax.

d. The With-Profits Actuary did not receive, nor will receive, any 

other pecuniary benefit.

22. Long Term Insurance Liability Valuation   
      Assumptions

Long term insurance liability valuation 
assumptions

The following sets out the assumptions underlying the valuation 

of the Society’s long term insurance liabilities.  The section also 

details the analysis of change in the Society’s capital resources 

over the year.  This may be used for the relevant section of the 

notes to the Report and Accounts.

A gross premium method of valuation is used for calculating the 

Society’s liabilities. 

The principal assumptions used to calculate the Society’s 

insurance liabilities are set out below:

Discount rate of interest

Discount rates are set having regard to risk free rates of return 

(without volatility adjustment) as specified by EIOPA as at 31 

December 2019.  The same approach was used at the end of 2018.

Expenses

Maintenance expenses have been allowed for in the valuation of 

the Society’s liabilities allowing for new business in accordance 

with the Society’s business plans for the period 2020-2022.  

Thereafter expenses are assumed to increase in line with an 

expense inflation assumption of 3.1%pa (2018: 3.2%).

Morbidity

For sickness products, an inception and recovery approach is 

used based on CMIR12 rates.  The rates assumed for inceptions 

and recoveries were as set out in the following tables.

Table of inceptions rates by reference to CMIR12 DP1 rates.

Table of recoveries rates by reference to CMIR12 DP1 rates.

Persistency

Based on the results of the experience investigation performed, 

the lapse rates are kept the same as at the year end valuation for 

2018. Lapses are assumed at 5.0% per annum for the Society’s 

Holloway members.  Protect and Breathing Space lapse rates are 

assumed to be 15% pa in policy years 1-5, 12.5% pa thereafter.  An 

additional allowance for policies cancelled from outset has been 

included, starting at 7% for policies in their first month, reducing 

to 0% for month 6 onwards (same allowance in 2018).

Contract type and date Holloway Protect

Age Range
31-Dec 31-Dec

2019 2018 2019 2018

Up to 20 10% 10%

35% 35%

20-24 20% 20%

25-29 30% 30%

30-34 40% 40%

35-39 50% 50%

40-44 65% 65%

45-49 65% 65%

50-54 65% 65%

55-59 65% 65%

Female load 30% 30% Nil Nil

Contract type and date Holloway Protect

Week of sickness
31-Dec 31-Dec

2019 2018 2019 2018

0-4 80% 80% 35% 35%

4-8 90% 90% 65% 65%

8-13 125% 125% 65% 65%

13+ 190% 190% 165% 165%

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

22. Long term insurance liability valuation 
assumptions (continued)

Mortality

Mortality rates are set by reference to standard actuarial tables.  

At the end of 2019 mortality in line with 45% of AMC00 Ultimate 

was assumed (2018 - 45% of AMC00 Ultimate) for non-commuted 

Holloway, Protect and Breathing Space contracts, and at a rate of 

60% of AMC00 Ultimate (2018 – 60% of AMC Ultimate) for commuted 

Holloway contracts.

Options and guarantees

The Society has no options or guarantees and accordingly holds no 

reserves for them.

Analysis of change

There has been an increase in the Society’s available capital resources 

from 31 December 2018 to 31 December 2019.  This is predominantly 

because of an increase through changes in New Business and 

Investment gains, offset by a decrease in the trading surplus and 

increase in inadmissible assets.  An analysis of the change is set out 

below:

23. Post Balance Sheet Event

The outbreak of COVID-19 during the first few months of 2020 

has resulted in a pandemic causing significant disruption across 

the globe. There is currently considerable uncertainty regarding 

the financial impact of COVID-19 on the Society. Operationally the 

Society has successfully moved to remote working for all staff.  

At the time of signing this report the Society has begun to 

see some deterioration in sickness claims and underwriting 

performance. The Society is closely monitoring volumes of new 

business, claims and lapse experience as the situation unfolds. The 

impact of falls in stock markets with the portfolio value declining 

by 4.7% in Q1, and the fall in gilt yields, are also being monitored.  

Management has put in place a project which monitors trends and 

assesses scenarios going forward.  The Board currently monitors 

outcomes on a weekly basis.

The Board has assessed the key emerging risks from Covid-19 

that may impact the Society and judges that these relate to an 

increasing incidence of claims; an increase in lapses; changes in 

the volumes and mix of new business; reductions in asset values; 

lower future investment growth; operational failures or decisions 

due to remote working that result in an inability to deliver the 

Society’s services or reputational damage.

The Society has taken steps to mitigate its exposure to worsening 

claims experience and is monitoring the other risks closely. 

Management have considered the possible impact of COVID-19 

on cashflow and liquidity and have no concerns at present but are 

monitoring this regularly.

A review has been undertaken of solvency at a point below the 

market’s lowest point to date. This has provided comfort to 

the Society’s Board that the Society is adequately covering its 

Solvency Capital Requirement and Minimum Capital Requirement 

and is expected to continue to do so over 2020 and beyond, 

allowing for an increase in claim cashflows during 2020.

Change in 
Available 
Capital
£’000

Available 
Capital
£’000

2018 available capital 34,818

New business 5,532

Investment gains 5,624

Trading surplus (4,363)

Model and assumption changes (901)

Other (3,780)

2019 available capital 36,930
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General Information

Society Information
As at 31 December 2019

British Friendly Society Limited

Registered Ofiice: 45 Bromham Road, Bedford, MK40 2AA

Telephone: 01234 358344

Fax: 01234 327879

E-mail: enquiries@britishfriendly.com

Website: www.britishfriendly.com

Facebook: British-Friendly

Independent Advisers and Consultants 2019

Chief Actuary

For the period 1 January 2019 to 14 November 2019: Christopher Critchlow FIA

For the period 15 November 2019 to 31 December 2019: Sally Butters FIA (subject to FCA approval)

both of OAC Actuaries & Consultants, 141-142 Fenchurch Street, London EC3M 6BL.

Auditors External

BDO LLP, 150 Aldergate Street, London EC1A 4AB

Auditors Internal

KPMG, 15 Canada Square, Canary Wharf, London E14 5GL

Bankers

Nat West Bank PLC, 81 High Street, Bedford MK40 lYN

Investment Managers

LGT Vestra, 14 Cornhill, London EC3V 3NR

Chief Medical Officer

Capita, The Grange, Bishops Cleeve, Cheltenham GL52 8XX

Solicitors

Taylor Walton Solicitors, 28-44 Alma Street,  Luton, Bedfordshire  LUl 2PL 

Paris Smith LLP, Number 1 London Road, Southampton, Hampshire SO15 2AE 

Friendly Society Law Consultants : M&G Advisory Services, 3 Northolme Road, London NS 2UZ

A Timeline Of The Year 
Have a look at all the great things we achieved in 2019....

January
We announced our Claims 

Statistics for 2018 (94.7%) & 

the last 13 years (96.2%)

February
We upgraded our discretionary Mutual Benefits programme with the following changes

 � Hotelogical benefit

 � LifeWorks app introduced

 � Increased the yearly allowance of Health Support points by 50%

 � Increased the discount on Staysure Travel Insurance to 20% (was 15%)

We were awarded a Gold Defaqto Service Rating.

June
We reached the milestone 

of 30,000 members covered 

by British Friendly Income 

Protection.

April
‘We unveiled Kathryn’s Health MOT, a case 

study video featuring Kathryn Knowles 

(Managing Director of Cura Financial 

Services) trying out a Health MOT, one of 

the discretionary Mutual Benefits that we 

offer members like you. 

March
We held our Member 

Photoshoot to update our 

imagery with photos of real 

members like you.

March
We launched ‘Neil’s Story’, a 

case study telling the story 

of Neil, one of our members 

who we supported through his 

year-long recovery from bowel 

cancer and sepsis.

December
We donated 14 bags full of gifts 

and essentials to support local 

people in need as part of the 

‘Love in a Bag’ campaign.

August
We began a partnership 

with DocuSign and MSS to 

streamline our Underwriting 

and Claims process.

May
Our Claims Manager James 

won the ‘Outstanding 

Customer Care Award’ at the 

Cover Customer Care Awards.

October
We won the ‘Best Added Value Provider 

Award’ at the Cover Excellence Awards.

Our 2020 Annual General Meeting
Our Annual General Meeting (AGM) usually takes place in June or July each year. However, due to the COVID-19 coronavirus pandemic 

we have taken the difficult but necessary decision to postpone this year’s meeting to best protect our members, board and staff. We 

have decided to reschedule this years AGM and the revised date will be communicated to members.

We apologise for any inconvenience this may cause but hope you can appreciate the reason for our decision.  Please remember that 

members like you are at the heart of everything we do, and supporting members suffering from symptoms of an illness or accident 

is our number one priority. If there’s anything we can do to help please do get in touch.

July
We won the ‘Life and Health Claims Award’ 

at the Protection Review Awards.
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